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May 9, referred to committee on style and drafting.. 38210
May 11, reported; placed on order of third reading:
considered read third time; passed ........... 3213-3275
Aug. 1, considered; adopted .................... 3291-3301
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FIFTIETH DAY

Thursday, January 4, 1962, 2:00 o’clock p.m.
PROCEEDINGS

PRESIDENT NISBET: The convention will please come
to order. !

OQur invocation today is to be given by the Reverend M.
Schuurmans of the Delta Center Methodist Church of Lansing.

REVEREND SCHUURMANS: Shall we stand, please. Let
us pray. We bow before Thee, our heavenly Father, as the
creator and sustainer of the universe, to whom we as Thy
children are responsible and obligated.

We thank Thee for the revelation that Thou art concerned
and interested in the concerns of men and that through Thy
holy spirit Thou canst help us in our need. We thank Thee for
our blessed country and pray Thy blessing and guidance upon
President Kennedy, the congress, and all those who lead us
during these trying and difficult times. We thank Thee, too,
for our great state of Michigan with all its beauty and its
unexcelled opportunities for attaining the good life. Bless our
governor, the legislature, and all those officials who direct
the affairs of this state. Above all we thank Thee that we are
free men who live in a democracy where we establish our own
government, where the best interest of the majority is our
ideal, but also where the rights of the individual are held
sacred.

We thank Thee for this constitutional convention and we
invoke Thy blessing and guidance upon each of its members.
We pray for inspiration and vision and wisdom that the
deliberations now under way may provide for our people a
state constitution that will promote the public welfare for
many, many years to come. May posterity be able to look
back upon this body and call it blessed because of what it has
accomplished. Keep us in Thy favor and look upon us in Thy
mercy. Forgive us, Lord, wherein we fail Thee and fall short of
Thine expectations of us. We pray, Lord, in our Master’s
name and for His sake. Amen.

.. PRESIDENT NISBET: The roll call will be taken by the
secretary. Those present please vote aye.-

SECRETARY CHASE: Has everyone voted? The machine
is now locked and the attendance will be recorded.

Mr. President, a quorum of the convention is present.

Prior to today’s session, the secretary received the following
requests for leave:

Mr. G. E. Brown, from today’s session to be a pallbearer at a
funeral in Kalamazoo; and Mr. Van Dusen from today’s session
as he must attend a board of directors meeting.

PRESIDENT NISBET: Without objection, the requests
are granted.

. SECRETARY CHASE: Absent with leave: Messrs. G. H.
Brown, J. A. Hannah, Pellow, Perlich, Thomson, Van Dusen,
Wood and Young.

Absent without leave: None.

PRESIDENT NISBET: Reports of standing committees.

SECRETARY CHASE: The committee on declaration of
rights, suffrage and elections, by Mr. Pollock, chairman, reports
back to the convention Delegate Proposal 1018, A proposal to
clarify legislator’'s immunity from arrest; with the recom-
mendation that the proposal be referred to the committee on
legislative powers.

) ) James K. Pollock, chairman.

PRESIDENT NISBET: Without objection it will be so
‘referred. Hearing none, it is referred to the committee on
legislative powers.

SECRETARY CHASE: The committee on declaration of
rights, suffrage and elections, by Mr. Pollock, chairman, re-
ports back to the convention Delegate Proposal 1022, A proposal
to provide 4 year terms for members of the legislature; with

the recommendation that the proposal be referred to the com-
mittee on legislative powers.
James K. Pollock, chairman.

PRESIDENT NISBET: Without objection the recommen-
dation will be approved. Hearing none, it is referred to the
committee on legislative powers.

SECRETARY CHASE: The committee on declaration of
rights, suffrage and elections, by Mr. Pollock, chairman, re-
ports back Delegate Proposal 1047, A proposal to provide a 4
year term of office for legislators, the governor, lieutenant
governor, secretary of state, state treasurer, auditor general,
and attorney general, and to fix the time of such elections;
with the recommendation that this proposal be referred to the
committee on legislative powers.

James K. Pollock, chairman.

PRESIDENT NISBET: Without objection the report will
be accepted and the proposal referred. Hearing none, it is
referred to the committee on legislative powers.

SECRETARY CHASE: The committee on declaration of
rights, suffrage and elections, by Mr. Pollock, chairman, also
reports back Delegate Proposal 1067, A proposal to divide the
state into 8 territorial districts for nonpartisan election of
certain state officials; with the recommendation that the
proposal be referred concurrently to the committees on edu-
cation and judicial branch.

James K. Pollock, chairman.

PRESIDENT NISBET: Without objection the referral
will be made as recommended. Hearing none, it is concurrently
referred to the committees on education and judicial branch.

SECRETARY CHASE: The committee on declaration of
rights, suffrage and elections, by Mr. Pollock, chairman, also
reports back Delegate Proposal 1232, A proposal to guarantee
to every citizen of Michigan an equal opportunity to vote
and to have his vote counted equally, regardless of race, creed,
color, national origin, or geographical location; with the rec-
ommendation that the proposal be referred to the committee
on legislative organization.

James K. Pollock, chairman.

PRESIDENT NISBET: Without objection, the report of
the committee will be accepted and it will be so referred.
Hearing none, it is referred to the committee on legislative
organization.

SECRETARY CHASE: Mr. Erickson, for the committee
on miscellaneous provisions and schedule, introduces
Committee Proposal 14, A proposal pertaining to the preamble
to the constitution;
with the recommendation that it pass.

Claud Erickson, chairman.

For Committee Proposal 1} and the reasons submitted in
support thereof, see below, page }64.

PRESIDENT NISBET: Referred to the committee of the
whole and placed on the general orders calendar.

SECRETARY CHASE: Mr. Pollock, for the committee on
declaration of rights, suffrage and elections, introduces
Committee Proposal 15, A proposal to amend article II per-
taining to the declaration of rights;
with the recommendation that it pass.

James K. Pollock, chairman.

For Committiee Proposal 15 and the reasons submitted in

support thereof, see below, page 464.

PRESIDENT NISBET: Referred to the committee of the
whole and placed on the general orders calendar.
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before graduation. The appalling fact is that unemployment
among the nongraduates is 8.5 million. Among graduates the
number of unemployed is about 14 of that number.

What the education committee asks is that this convention
make it possible for the state of Michigan to invest in the
future, in the lives of our most important possession, the
future citizens of our state.

MR. BENTLEY: Thank you, Miss Andrus, Miss Hart. I
will be glad to yleld to any questions from any member of
the committee of the whole at this time. If there are no ques-
l:ionz,s I shall be glad to yield the floor for any possible amend-
ments,

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI:
Bentley ?

Mrs. Butler.

MRS. BUTLER: Mr. Chairman, I wanted to ask a question
of Mr. Bentley. I should like to know what word you said,
first, to underline. I did not fully understand what you said
in that regard.

MR. BENTLEY: For the information of the lady from
Houghton, if you will start on line 7, Mrs. Butler, with the
word “programs”—the first word that is not stricken— and go
down to the word “handicapped” on line 9, those are all the
new words added by the committee on education.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Are there any amendments?

Mr. Farnsworth,

MR. FARNSWORTH: Mr. Chairman, I have no amend-
ment but I do have a question to put to Mr. Bentley or Miss
Hart.

MR. BENTLEY: I will gladly yield, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Do you care to answer it?

MR. BENTLEY: Surely.

MR. FARNSWORTH: Mr. Bentley, Miss Hart, is it your
idea that this will pretty much put the state in the business
of completely supporting the child guidance clinics and the
schools for mentally retarded children who are trainable?

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Do you care to answer, Miss
Hart?

MISS HART: I would hope it would have this effect.

MR. FARNSWORTH: That answers my question. Thank
you.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Are there any further questions?
Are there any amendments to the proposal?

If not, it will pass.

Committee Proposal 13 is passed.

Committee Proposal 14. The secretary will read. R

SECRETARY CHASE: Item 2 on the calendar, from the
committee on miscellaneous provisions and schedule, by Mr.
Erickson, chairman, Committee Proposal 14, A proposal per-
taining to the preamble to the constitution.

Are there any questions of Mr.

Following i8 Committee Proposal 1} as read by the secretary,
and the reasons submitted in support thereof:

; The committee recommends that the following
! be included in the constitution:

We, the people of the state of Michigan, grateful to
Almighty God for the blessings of freedom, and earnestly
desiring to secure these blessings undiminished to ourselves
and our posterity, do ordain and establish this constitution.

Mr. Erickson, chairman of the committee on miscellane-
ous provisions and schedule, submits the following reasons
in support of Committee Proposal 14 :

After consideration of the various delegate proposals

~.and hearing of witnesses, the committee recommends the
following :

That the preamble in the present constitution is fitting

- and proper and is sufficient for all purposes.

The preamble should be retained without change.

- ‘CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI:
Committee Proposal 14?

- Mr. Brickson,

 MR. ERICKSON: Mr. Chairman and members of the com-
mittee of the whole, the work on this preamble, although it is

Are there any amendments to

suggested and recommended that it be the same as in our
present constitution, was done by Mr. Leppien as subcommittee
chairman, Mr. Bledsoe as vice chairman, Mr. Durst, Mr. Sey-
ferth and Mr. Binkowski.

Of course, we see that this preamble is part of the constitu-
tion and it is not part of the constitution, and perhaps we
should take a moment in which to explain that seemingly
contradictory statement. In Jacobson v. Massachusetts, 197
U.S. 11, 1905, the Supreme Court of the United States said of
the preamble of the United States constitution that it was,
strictly speaking, not a part of the constitution at all, but
“walks before” it. The court held further that it, the preamble,
can support, by itself alone, no basis of a claim either of
governmental power or of private right. Rather it is declama-
tory of the great ends for which the constitution was written,
and in addition it indicates the contractual character of the
constitution. The language “We the people of the United
States, . . . do ordain and establish this constitution for the
United States....” is quite clearly a reflection of the Lockeian
concept of the compact theory of the state, under which all
American governments, since the time of the revolution, both
state and federal, are derived from the compact of the people
setting up the government. By analogy, sound certainly in
this instance, these ideas would apply to the preamble of the
Constitution of the State of Michigan. That is, it is declaratory
of general intent, but it is not law in the sense that it can
establish any basis for a claim, right, title, privilege, immunity,
et cetera, in a court of law.

The language of the Michigan preamble, as standing in the
Constitution of 1908, clearly reflects the Lockeian compact
theory of the state. It employs this language, “We, the people
of the state of Michigan . . .” and it ends up with, “do ordain
and establish this constitution.” Its concluding words are
“do ordain and establish this constitution.”

On the other hand, the preamble of the 1850 constitution
said simply, “The people of the state of Michigan do ordain
this constitution.” That is ample. At that time the change
was made to give recognition in the constitution to the Supreme
Being. Similar recognition is found in many other constitutions.

This committee did considerable work and they have asked
me to make this report. The United States and 48 state con-
stitutions have a preamble as a matter of form. The constitu-
tions of the states of Vermont and West Virginia do not have
a preamble. Presently the preambles of the constitutions of
the states of New Hampshire, Oregon and Tennessee do not
mention God. The preambles of 31 states give recognition to
Almighty God. The references vary. Six states refer to God,
3 states refer to the Supreme Ruler of the Universe. Others
refer to the Creator, the Supreme Being, Divine Guidance,
Great Legislator of the Universe or Sovereign Ruler of the
Universe. The wording in each case is similar.

The other principal reference in preambles is to either
liberty or freedom. Twenty-nine states use the term “liberty”
and 8 use the term “freedom”. Michigan uses the word “free-
dom”. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Are there any amendments to
the proposal? If not, it will pass.

Committee Proposal 14 is passed.

The secretary will read.

SECRETARY CHASE: From the committee on declaration
of rights, suffrage and elections, by Mr. Pollock, chairman,
Committee Proposal 15, A proposal to amend article II per-
taining to the declaration of rights.

Following is Committee Proposal 15 a3 read by the sccretary,
and the reasons submitted in support thereof:

The committee recommends that the following
be included in the constitution :

Article I [II]
Declaration of rights
Political power
Sec. 1. All political power is inherent in the people.
Government is instituted for their equal benefit, security
and protection.
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Right of assembly and petition

Sec. 2. The people have the right peaceably to assemble,
to consult for the common good, to instruct their repre-
sentatives and to petition the [legislature] GOVERNMENT
for redress of grievances.

Freedom of worship; disabilities

Sec. 3. Every person shall be at liberty to worship God
according to the dictates of his own conscience. No person
shall be compelled to attend, or, against his consent, to
contribute to the erection or support of any place of
religious worship, or to pay tithes, taxes or other rates
for the support of any minister of the gospel or teacher
of religion. No money shall be appropriated or drawn
from the treasury for the benefit of any religious sect or
society, theological or religious seminary; nor shall prop-
erty belonging to the state be appropriated for any such
purpose. The civil and political rights, privileges and
capacities of no person shall be diminished on account of
his religious belief.

Liberty of speech and press

Sec. 4. Every person may freely speak, write, EX-
PRESS, and publish his [sentiments] VIEWS on all sub-
jects, being responsible for the abuse of such right; and
no law shall be passed to restrain or abridge the liberty
of speech or of the press.

Right to bear arms

Sec. 5. Every person has a right to bear arms for the
defense of himself and the state.
Civil power supreme

Sec. 6. The military shall in all cases and at all times
be in strict subordination to the civil power.
Quartering of soldiers

Sec. 7. No soldier shall, in time of peace, be quartered
in any house without the consent of the owner or occu-
pant, nor in time of war, except in a manner prescribed
by law.
Slavery prohibited

Sec. 8. Neither slavery, nor involuntary servitude[,]
unless for the punishment of crime, shall ever be tolerated
in this state.
Attainder; ex post facto laws; impairment of contracts

Sec. 9. No bill of attainder, ex post facto law or law
impairing the obligation of contracts shall be passed.
Searches and seizures

Sec. 10. The person, houses, papers and possessions of
every person shall be secure from unreasonable searches
and seizures. No warrant to search any, place or to seize
any person or things shall issue without describing them,
nor without probable cause, supported by oath or affirma-
tion[: Provided, however, That the provisions of this
section shall not be construed to bar from evidence in any
court of criminal jurisdiction, or in any criminal proceed-
ing held before any magistrate or justice of the peace, any
narcotic drug or drugs, any firearm, rifle, pistol, revolver,
automatic pistol, machine gun, bomb, shell, explosive,
blackjack, slungshot, billy, metallic knuckles, gas ejecting
device, or any other dangerous weapon or thing, seized by
any peace officer outside the curtilage of any dwelling
house in this state]. EVIDENCE OBTAINED IN VIOLA-
TION OF THIS SECTION SHALL NOT BE USED EX-
CEPT AS AUTHORIZED BY LAW.
Habeas corpus

Sec. 11. The privilege of the writ of habeas corpus
shall not be suspended unless in case of rebellion, INSUR-
RECTION or invasion the public safety may require it.
Appearance in person or by counsel

Sec. 12, Any suitor in any court of this state shall have
the right to prosecute or defend his suit, either in his own
Proper person or by an attorney [or agent of his choice].
Jury trial

Sec. 13. The right of trial by jury shall remain, but
shall be deemed to be waived in all civil cases unless de-

manded by one of the parties in such manner as shall be
prescribed by law.

. Former jeopardy ; bailable offenses

Sec. 14. [No person, after acquittal upon the merits,
shall be tried for the same offense] NO PERSON SHALL
BE SUBJECT FOR THE SAME OFFENSE TO BE
TWICE PUT IN JEOPARDY. All persons shall, before
conviction, be bailable by sufficient sureties, except for
murder and treason when the proof is evident or the pre-
sumption great.

Bail, fines; punishment; detention of witnesses

Sec. 15. Excessive bail shall not be required ; excessive
fines shall not be imposed; cruel or unusual punishment
shall not be inflicted ; nor shall witnesses be unreasonably
detained.

Self incrimination ; due process of law

Sec. 16. No person shall be compelled in any criminal
case to be a witness against himself, nor be deprived of life,
liberty or property, without due process of law. THE
RIGHT OF ALL PERSONS TO FAIR AND JUST
TREATMENT IN THE COURSE OF LEGISLATIVE AND
EXECUTIVE PROCEEDINGS, INVESTIGATIONS, AND
HEARINGS SHALL NOT BE INFRINGED.
Competency of witnesses

Sec. 17. No person shall be rendered incompetent to be
a witness on account of his opinions on matters of re-
ligious belief.

Libels; truth as defense

Sec. 18. In all prosecutions for libels the truth may be
given in evidence to the jury; and, if it shall appear to
the jury that the matter charged as libelous is true and
was published with good motives and for justifiable ends,
the accused shall be acquitted.

Rights of accused

Sec. 19. In every criminal prosecution, the accused
shall have the right to a speedy and public trial by an
impartial jury, which may consist of less than 12 [men]
JURORS in all courts not of record ; to be informed of the
nature of the accusation; to be confronted with the wit-
nesses against him; to have compulsory process for ob-
taining witnesses in his favor; to have the assistance of
counsel for his defense; TO HAVE AN APPEAL AS A
MATTER OF RIGHT; and in courts of record, when the
trial court shall so order, to have such reasonable assist-
ance as may be necessary to perfect and prosecute an
appeal.

Imprisonment for debt or military fine

Sec. 20. No person shall be imprisoned for debt arising
out of, or founded on a TORT OR A contract, express or
implied, except in cases of fraud or breach of trust, or of
moneys collected by public officers or in any professional
employment. [No person shall be imprisoned for military
fine in time of peace.]

Treason; definition, evidence

Sec. 21. Treason against the state shall consist only in
levying war against it or in adhering to its enemies, giving
them aid and comfort. No person shall be convicted of
treason unless upon the testimony of 2 witnesses to the
same overt act, or on confession in open court.
[Subversion ; definition, penalty; rights not valid as de-
fense.]

[Sec. 22. Subversion shall consist of any act, or ad-
vocacy of any act, intended to overthrow the form. of
government of the United States or the form of govern-
ment of this state, as established by this constitution and
as guaranteed by section 4 of article 4 of the Constitution
of the United States of America, by force or violence or by
any unlawful means.] )

[Subversion is declared to be a crime against the state,
punishable by any penalty provided by law.] )

[Subversion shall constitute an abuse of the rights se-
cured by section 4 of this article, and the rights sectired

BExplanation—Matter within [ ] s stricken, matter in capitals is new.
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thereby shall not be valid as a defense in any trial for
subversion.]

SEC. — THE ENUMERATION IN THIS CONSTITU-
TION OF CERTAIN RIGHTS SHALL NOT BE CON-
STRUED TO DENY OR DISPARAGE OTHERS RE-
TAINED BY THE PEOPLE.

Mr. Pollock, chairman of the committee on declaration
of rights, suffrage and elections, submits the following
reasons in support of Committee Proposal 15:

Article II—Proposed Article I

The committee recommends herewith to the convention
that the declaration of rights, which is now article II of
the present constitution, become article I of the new con-
stitution. In the committee’s opinion the liberties of the
people are so fundamental to the Michigan constitution
and to free representative government generally that the
declaration of rights which establishes the fundamental
principles of liberty and sets up the basic legal guideposts
for their implementation and enforcement, should appear
as the first article in the new constitution. In retaining
or altering any present provisions, the committee has care-
fully considered the exact language in question, as well as
committee intent, with the purpose of reducing as far as
possible the necessity of judicial construction.

Sec. 1. “All political power is inherent in the people.
Government is instituted for their equal benefit, security
and protection.”

Comment: This section is declaratory of the basic idea
of free government. The committee recommends that it be
retained without change. Delegate Proposal 1408, sub-
mitted by Mr. Wanger, would add to this “The enumeration
in this constitution of certain rights shall not be con-
strued to deny or disparage others retained by the people.”
The committee, it will be observed from the report, be-
lieves this section, which is modeled upon the ninth
amendment of the federal constitution, is appropriate to
a declaration of rights, but it recommends its inclusion in
the constitution as a separate section.

Sec. 2. “The people have the right peaceably to as-
semble, to consult for the common good, to instruct their
representatives and to petition the [legislature] GOVERN-
MENT for redress of grievances.”

Comment: This section embodying the historic rights
of freedom of assembly and petition has been retained
intact except for the substitution in the text of the word
“government” for “legislature.” This change reflects rec-
ognition by the committee that whether one likes it or not
other agencies of the government than merely the legis-
lature today exercise actual policy making functions and
so ought to be subject to the right of petition. This is un-
doubtedly true, for example, of the governor and the
executive establishment. The committee considered various
possible formulas for expanding the right of petition but
came to the conclusion that the word “government” was
best calculated to accomplish its intention and that the
attempt at more precise definition encountered some diffi-
culties. The word “government,” it may be observed, has
good precedent for it occurs in this usage in the first
amendment to the Constitution of the United States.

Sec. 3. “Every person shall be at liberty to worship
God according to the dictates of his own conscience. No
person shall be compelled to attend, or, against his consent,
to contribute to the erection or support of any place of
religious worship, or to pay tithes, taxes or other rates for
the support of any minister of the gospel or teacher of
religion. No money shall be appropriated or drawn from
the treasury for the benefit of any religious sect or soclety,
- theological or religious seminary; nor shall property be-
- longing to the state be appropriated for any such purpose.
The civil and political rights, privileges and capacities of
. mo person shall be diminished or enlarged on account of
- his religious belief.”

“Comment: This section Incorporates in some detafl the
_»traditional American guarantees of individual religious

liberty and the separation of church and state. From one
point of view, this section may now be unnecessary, in that
the supreme court of the United States beginning with the
New Jersey Bus Case (1946) has gone to great lengths to
incorporate a like series of guarantees against the states
within the content of the fourteenth amendment. However,
the committee has acted consistently on the basis of the
belief that long established and traditional guarantees
within the Michigan constitution ought to be retained in-
tact. The committee also believes that it is good constitu-
tional practice for the Michigan constitution to continue
the incorporation of the fundamental guarantees of liberty
in our declaration of rights even when the federal govern-
ment appears to have gone very far in guaranteeing the
rights in question against state action.

The committee also has considered carefully Mr. Nord’s
proposal, Delegate Proposal 1092, which would have added
to the section the words “nor shall sectarian instruction
be allowed in any school supported by the state.” Though
there was some sentiment for the amendment, the majority
in the committee voted not to include it, principally on
the ground that it was unnecessary.

The committee on education concurs in the language of
the section as submitted.

Sec. 4. “Every person may freely speak, write, EX-
PRESS, and publish his [sentiments] VIEWS on all sub-
jects, being responsible for the abuse of such rights; and
no law shall be passed to restrain or abridge the liberty
of speech or of the press.”

Comment: Here again is a traditional guarantee of
American liberty, now covered largely by the extension of
federal constitutional guarantees against the states, which
the committee nonetheless believes it wise to continue to
incorporate in Michigan’s fundamental law.

The incorporation of the word “express” and the substi-
tution of the word “views” for ‘“sentiments” both taken
from an amendment submitted in committee by Mr. Norris
were done on the unanimous vote of the committee. The
committee believes that the multiplicity of contemporary
means of expression (as over and against the traditional
means of speaking and writing) justifies the first change,
while the word “views” seems to have a sharper and more
specific meaning than the former word “sentiments.”

The committee carefully considered but unanimously
decided against the incorporation, after the phrase “liberty
of speech,” additional wordage which would have read “by
whatever means communicated.” The committee believes
that this phrase raises potential difficulty with respect to
the federal government’s exclusive sovereignty in the area
of radio and television communication particularly in the
light of certain concepts in the federal communications
act of 1934, as amended, which make it clear that radio
and television communication are subject to a wide sweep
of control in the public interest.

Sec. 5. “Every person has a right to bear arms for the
defense of himself and the state.”

Sec. 8. “The military shall in all cases and at all times
be in strict subordination to the civil power.”

Sec. 7. “No soldier shall, in time of peace, be quartered
in any house without the consent of the owner or occupant,
nor in time of war, except in a manner prescribed by law.”

Sec. 8. “Neither slavery, nor involuntary servitude un-
less for the punishment of crime, shall ever be tolerated
in this state.”

Sec. 9. “No bill of attainder, ex post facto law or law
impairing the obligation of contracts shall be passed.”

Comment: These sections all incorporate traditional
guarantees of American liberty. In part they may be
obsolete (for example, the guarantee against quartering of
soldiers in time of peace), and in part they may have be-
come so self evident that their affirmation may appear to
be superfluous; i.e., the guarantee against slavery and in-
voluntary servitude. In addition, several of the guarantees

Explanation—Matter within [ ] is stricken, matter in capitals is new.
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in question (the prohibition upon slavery, and those against
bills of attainder, ex post facto laws and the impairment
of the obligations of contracts) appear in the federal con-
stitution as against the states so that their inclusion in
the state constitution as guarantees of liberty is in a
certain technical sense superfluous. However, the commit-
tee believes strongly that the preservation of liberty and
its affirmation is as much a function of the several states
and their respective governments as it is of the federal
government. Accordingly, it believes that the retention of
the enumeration of the liberties in question in a state
constitution is proper in all the aforementioned instances.

The delegates will observe that one very minor sub-
stantive change has been made in section 8. The comma
which formerly appeared after the word “servitude” has
been eliminated and a new comma inserted after the word
“slavery.” The old punctuation conceivably made slavery
permissible as a punishment for crime. The new punctua-
tion forbids slavery categorically and makes involuntary
servitude alone permissible as a punishment for crime.

Sec. 10. “The person, houses, papers and possessions of
every person shall be secure from unreasonable searches
and seizures. No warrant to search any place or to seize
any person or things shall issue without describing them,
nor without probable cause, supported by oath or affirma-
tion[ : Provided, however, That the provisions of this sec-
tion shall not be construed to bar from evidence in any
court of criminal jurisdiction, or in any criminal proceed-
ing held before any magistrate or justice of the peace,
any narcotic drug or drugs, any firearm, rifle, pistol, re-
volver, automatic pistol, machine gun, bomb, bomb shell,
explosive, blackjack, slungshot, billy, metallic knuckles, gas
ejecting device, or any other dangerous weapon or thing,
seized by any peace officer outside the curtilage of any
dwelling house in this state]. EVIDENCE OBTAINED IN
VIOLATION OF THIS SECTION SHALL NOT BE USED
EXCEPT AS AUTHORIZED BY LAW.”

Comment: As the foregoing text makes evident, the
committee after very careful consideration decided to drop
the proviso with respect to the admissibility into evidence
of certain weapons, arms, narcotics and other articles,
which had been adopted by constitutional referendum in
1952. The committee’s decision rests principally upon its
recognition of the apparent sweeping impact of the opinion
of the United States supreme court in Mapp v. Ohio (June,
1961) in which the court, in a 5 to 3 opinion, appears to
have asserted categorically in very broad language that
hereafter evidence obtained in violation of the guarantees
of the fourth amendment to the federal constitution will
be inadmissible in both state and federal courts.

There was some considerable difference of opinion among
the legal experts in the committee as to the force of the
Mapp case for Michigan constitutional law. Certain of the
judges and lawyers on the committee believed that the
impact of the Mapp case on state law is so categorical
that it leaves no possible constitutional grounds whatso-
ever for the inclusion of the 1952 proviso, which according
to this interpretation now is null and void under the doc-
trine of federal supremacy.

Other legal experts on the committee pointed out, how-
ever, that the Mapp case may very well be construed
more narrowly than the foregoing argument implies. In
the first place, the Mapp case dealt with a seizure within
the curtilage, whereas the 1952 proviso specifically is
limited to seizures outside the curtilage. In addition, the
Mapp case dealt also with the seizure of printed materials
and it thus has first amendment implications about which
the supreme court of the United States has traditionally
entertained a specially tender regard. In short, this argu-
ment runs, the Mapp case may very well be limited in
the future by the process of redefinition, exclusion, and
limitation so as to establish the constitutionality of state
provisions similar to that in the 1952 Michigan proviso.

It should be observed, also, that there was a genuine
difference in the committee with respect to the wisdom of

the policy incorporated in the 1952 proviso. Certain mem-
bers of the committee believed that the proviso incorpo-
rated legal guarantees essential to the maintenance of
public order and safety and that it did not infringe in any
fundamental way upon the traditional constitutional limits
against arbitrary search and seizure. The opposite point
of view also found expression: that the proviso constituted
a serious impairment of the traditional guarantees of
American liberty and, as such, ought to be eliminated.

The committee finally resolved these differences of
opinion both with respect to constitutional law and good
constitutional policy by the adoption of a new provision
stipulating that ‘“evidence obtained in violation of this
section shall not be used except as authorized by law.”
This language, in the committee’s belief, will have the
following constitutional and legal consequences: first, it
recognizes the supremacy of federal constitutional law
with respect to search and seizure as defined in the Mapp
case and other opinions. This is the implication in part of
the new phrase, “as authorized by law.” Thus, if the
Mapp case turns out to have the all inclusive sweep that
some observers believe it will, the wording of the Michigan
constitution will remain consistent with supreme federal
law.

At the same time, the new provision recognizes that the
sweep of the Mapp case ultimately may not be as all
inclusive as it now appears to some to be. Should the defi-
nition of the federal limits imposed on the states with
respect to the admissibility of evidence change in the
future, the Michigan legislature and the Michigan courts
could incorporate, in statute and court decisions, those
rules with respect to the admissibility of evidence which
reflect the opinion of the legislature and the Michigan
courts as to what ought to constitute sound practice in
this state, subject only to the continuing recognition of
the limits set by federal constitutional supremacy.

The new provision also obviously has the effect of re-
storing to the legislature of the state of Michigan a very
large degree of discretion in what constitutes good policy
on rules of evidence in relation to search and seizure. The
committee believes that the restoration of legislative flexi-
bility in this matter is consistent with generally sound
constitutional practice.

Sec. 11. “The privilege of the writ of habeas corpus
shall not be suspended unless in case of rebellion, INSUR-
RECTION or invasion the public safety may require it.”

Comment : This section has been carried over intact from
the old declaration of rights with the important addition
of the word “insurrection.” On a roll call vote, the com-
mittee voted 13 to 2 in favor of the addition of this word.
It was the belief of the committee that there have been
historical situations in which uprisings against the gov-
ernment so wide spread, well organized and effective as to
close the civil courts and require suppression by military
force which nonetheless cannot properly be described tech-
nically as rebellion. Technically in law “rebellion” implies
a state of belligerency and public war such as that alluded
to by the supreme court in the Prize Cases (1863) and in
Texas v. White (1866). Disturbances which close the
courts and require suppression by military force may re-
quire suspension of the writ of habeas corpus and yet not
be rebellion in the sense that the confederacy constituted
such. See, for example, ex parte Merryman, 9 Fed. Cases,
487 (1861).

Sec. 12, “Any suitor in any court of this state shall
have the right to prosecute or defend his suit, either in
his own proper person or by an attorney [or agent of his
choice].

Comment: This section as now worded deletes the word
“agent” to clarify the meaning and reconcile its provisions
with current practice, so that no one may contend that a
litigant is empowered by constitutional law to engage a
person to represent him in a court of record unless said

Explanation—Matter within [ ] is stricken, matter in capitsls is new.
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person is licensed to practice law. This is consistent with
a supreme court decision which holds that the word
“ggent” as used in the 1908 constitution was in substance
synonymous with “attorney.” Thus this change is in con-
formity with the court’s recognition that the public interest
is best protected by those who are subject to the super-
initending power of the courts. This, of course, does not pre-
clude any person from arguing his own case in court if he
so desires. The new wording also allows the legislature,
at its discretion, to broaden the right of persons to repre-
sentation in court by counsel or persons not attorneys.

Sec. 13. “The right of trial by jury shall remain, but
shall be deemed to be waived in all civil cases unless de-
manded by one of the parties in such manner as shall be
prescribed by law.”

Comment: This provision guarantees the right to a jury
trial but requires that the right is deemed to be waived
in a civil suit unless one of the parties demands it, whereas,
in a criminal case a jury must be affirmatively waived
by the defendant (in practice in writing).

The committee recommends the retention of this section.

Sec. 14. .“[No person, after acquittal upon the merits,
shall be tried for the same offense] NO PERSON SHALL
BE ‘SUBJECT FOR THE SAME OFFENSE TO BE
TWICE PUT IN JEOPARDY. All persons shall, before
conviction, be bailable by sufficient sureties, except for
murder and treason, when the proof is evident or the pre-
sumption great.”

to acquittal. In fact, however, the Michigan courts have
followed the federal rule on double jeopardy. The new
language thus appears to be consistent with the actual
practice of the courts in Michigan.

Sec. 15. “Excessive bail shall not be required; excessive
fines shall not be imposed; cruel or unusual punishment
shall not be inflicted ; nor shall witnesses be unreasonably
detained.”

Comment: The committee believes that these guaran-
tees against a requirement of excessive bail, excessive fines,
cruel or unusual punishment, and the unreasonable deten-
tion of witnesses are satisfactory as now stated and require
no change from the present constitution.

Sec. 16. “No person shall be compelled in any criminal
case to be a witness against himself, nor be deprived of
life, liberty or property, without due process of law.
THE RIGHT OF ALL PERSONS TO FAIR AND JUST
TREATMENT IN THE COURSE OF LEGISLATIVE AND
EXECUTIVE PROCEEDINGS, INVESTIGATIONS, AND
HEARINGS SHALL NOT BE INFRINGED.”

Comment: This section, as amended, incorporates a
new guarantee of fair and just treatment in legislative and
executive investigations. This recognizes the extent to
‘which legislative and executive investigations, both on the
state and federal level, lately have tended to assume a
quasi judicial character. The language proposed is similar
to that contained in a comparable section of the recent
Constitution of the state of Alaska. The language pro-

[The comment regarding section 14 immediately following is
the comment as originally submitted by the committee. This
was ordered revised on January 11 (see below, page 544).
The revised comment appears following this original comment.]

posed by the committee does not in any sense impose cate-
gorically the guarantees of procedural due process upon
such investigations. Instead, it leaves to the legislature,
the executive and finally to the courts, the task of develop-

Comment: The foregoing change in section 14 involves ing fair rules of procedure appropriate to such investiga-

the substitution of the double jeopardy provision from the
Constitution of the United States (except for the deletion
of the obsolete words of ‘“lif¢ or limb”) in place of the
original provision which merely prohibits retrial after
“gequittal upon the merits.” The former language, the
committee points out, has been consistently construed by
the Michigan supreme court to mean something quite dif-
ferent than the words on the surface appear to connote.
Taken literally, the words appear to say that there is no
double jeopardy until a trial has run its course complete
to- acquittal. In fact, however, the Michigan courts have
followed the federal rule on double jeopardy and have
construed the provision to mean that an accused person
is put in jeopardy as soon as a jury is empanelled. This
is the same rule with respect to jeopardy as is followed
by the federal courts. The new language thus appears to
be more consistent with the actual practice of the courts
in Michigan. :

The committee also believes that the new provision will
permit the courts an appropriate degree of latitude in de-
fining and restricting the concept of jeopardy so as to
permit retrial of a defendant in certain instances in which
some minor mechanical legal flaw in indictment or pro-
cedure permits a guilty person to escape without punish-
ment..

Féllowmg is the comment regarding section 14 as revised on
January 12 (see below, page 559) by the commiliee on declara-

tion of rights, suffrage and elections:

Comment: The foregoing change in section 14 involves
the substitution of the double jeopardy provision from the
Constitution of the United States (except for the deletion
of the obsolete words of “life or limb”) in place of the
.original provision which merely prohibits retrial after

~“gequittal upon the merits.” The former language, the
committee points out, has been consistently construed by
‘the Michigan supreme court to mean something quite dif-
‘ferent than the words on the surface appear to connote.
Taken Hterally, the words appear to say that there is no
= double’ jeopardy until ‘@' trial has run its course complete

tions and hearings. It may be observed that a considerable
body of federal constitutional law with respect to federal
investigations both by executive bodies and by congress
has evolved in the last 10 years. This section as drafted
by the committee would make Michigan practice consistent
with this development.

Sec. 17. “No person shall be rendered incompetent to
be a witness on account of his opinions on matters of
religious belief.”

Comment: The committee believes this provision should
be retained intact. At first glance it might be supposed
that it should be incorporated in section 3, which guaran-
tees freedom of worship and religious liberty. Actually,
however, section 17 deals with court procedure rather than
with religious liberty as such, and for this reason the
committee has suggested retaining it intact, as a separate
section.

Sec. 18. “In all prosecutions for libels the truth may be
given in evidence to the jury; and, if it shall appear to the
jury that the matter charged as libelous is true and was
published with good motives and for justifiable ends, the
accused shall be acquitted.”

Comment: The committee recommends the continuation
unchanged of this provision in the present constitution.
It considered carefully an amendment which would have
modified the section to eliminate criminal prosecutions for
malicious libel against private individuals. But it believes
that the defenses of truth, good motives and justifiable
ends constitute an adequate protection, both for individuals
and for the press, and that the provision accordingly
ought to remain unchanged.

The language of the section also apparently deals with
the traditional right of the state to prosecute the offense
originally known as seditious libel, which today probably
could be comprised merely within the phrase “sedition”;
i.e., language intended to damage or destroy the govern-
ment or to overthrow it by unlawful means. Again, the
guarantees of the section with respect to defenses of truth,

Explanation—Matter within [ 1 is stricken, matter in capitals is new.
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motives and justifiable ends appear to be adequate for this
purpose also.

Sec. 19. “In every criminal prosecution the accused
shall have the right to a speedy and public trial by an im-
partial jury, which may consist of less than 12 [men]
JURORS in all courts not of record; to be informed of the
nature of the accusation; to be confronted with the wit-
nesses against him ; to have compulsory process for obtain-
ing witnesses in his favor; to have the assistance of counsel
for his defense; TO HAVE AN APPEAL AS A MATTER
OF RIGHT; and in courts of record, when the trial court
shall so order, to have such reasonable assistance as may
be necessary to perfect and prosecute an appeal.”

Comment: This section deals with the traditional guar-
antees of a fair trial for an accused person in criminal
cases. It needs little change. The substitution of the word
“jurors” for “men” in the 12 person jury guarantee takes
recognition of the modern fact that women as well as men
now are electors and eligible to serve on juries.

The guarantee of a categorical right of appeal in crim-
inal cases the committee believes to be consistent with the
recent trend of opinion in the federal courts and, in any
event, to be sound and fair procedural practice. As one of
the members of the committee said, “It is not merely the
consequence or inconsequence of the punishment which may
be imposed upon a defendant upon conviction; there is
also the fact that a conviction for any offense, no matter
how trivial it may be, nowadays constitutes a blot upon an
individual’s record which may be of subsequent significance
with respect to employment, government service, or merely
a person’s standing and reputation in the community at
large.” We desire to grant the status of a categorical con-
stitutional right to at least one appeal in a criminal case.
‘We do not intend to restrict the legislature in its power to
provide by law for additional appeals.

Sec. 20. “No person shall be imprisoned for debt arising
out of, or founded on a TORT OR A contract, express or
implied, except in cases of fraud or breach of trust, or of
moneys collected by public officers or in any professional
employment. [No person shall be imprisoned for military
fine in time of peace.]”

Comment: The addition of a prohibition on imprison-
ment for debt for torts where there is no fraud or breach
of trust is intended to eliminate a practice still moderately
common in the Michigan courts, whereby a plaintiff who
gets a judgment in a tort case may under some circum-
stances secure an order for the imprisonment of a de-
fendant where the judgment remains unsatisfied. The com-
mittee believes that this remnant of imprisonment for debt
is inconsistent with modern conceptions of liberty and
ought to be eliminated. It points out that imprisonment as
a remedy for the nonpayment of alimony is not affected
by the new language, since imprisonment in alimony cases
is technically in pursuance of a finding that a defendant
is in contempt of court.

The committee recommends striking the language guar-
anteeing against imprisonment for military fine in time
of peace. The language in question appears in part to be
too narrow a guarantee against the abuse of military
authority in peace time. (If a guarantee of this kind were
to be incorporated it ought to prohibit categorically the
jurisdiction of military courts over civil persons except
in cases of rebellion, insurrection, or invasion.) The pro-
vision is also apparently unnecessary, since the more gen-
eral guarantees in the constitution with respect to the
supremacy of the civil over the military power and the writ
of habeas corpus appear adequate to take care of the
matter of the jurisdiction of military courts.

Sec. 21. “Treason against the state shall consist only
in levying war against it or in adhering to its enemies,
giving them aid and comfort. No person shall be convicted
of treason unless upon the testimony of 2 witnesses to the
same overt act, or on confession in open court.”

Comment: The committee recommends the retention of
this section intact from the present constitution. It may

well be that the federal government’s virtually complete
preemption of the subject of treason and sedition has made
this section so much surplusage, see Pennsylvania vs. Nel-
son (1956). However, it is quite conceivable that congress
and the federal courts may, at least in part, in the future
return jurisdiction over treason to the states, in which
case the Michigan treason provision would take on re-
newed meaning as a guarantee against broad prosecutions
for this offense. Conceivably, also, the state of Michigan,
in a modern war, might find itself isolated from control
by the central government; again, the treason provision
would become significant.

“[Sec. 22, Subversion shall consist of any act, or advo-
cacy of any act, intended to overthrow the form of govern-
ment of the United States or the form of government of
this state, as established by this constitution and as guar-
anteed by section 4 of article 4 of the Constitution of the
United States of America, by force or violence or by any
unlawful means.]

[Subversion is declared to be a crime against the state,
punishable by any penalty provided by law.]

[Subversion shall constitute an abuse of the rights se-
cured by section 4 of this article, and the rights secured
thereby shall not be valid as a defense in any trial for
subversion.]”

Comment: The committee recommends the deletion of
section 22 of the present constitution. This section as at
present constituted deals with the crime of subversion
which it defines as “any act, or advocacy of any act,
intended to overthrow the form of government of the
United States or the form of government of this state, as
established by this constitution and as guaranteed by sec-
tion 4 of article 4 of the Constitution of the United States
of America, by force or violence or by any unlawful
means.” This section in its second paragraph declares sub-
version “to be a crime against the state, punishable by any
penalty provided by law.” And in the third paragraph it
declares that subversion ‘“‘shall constitute an abuse of the
rights secured by section 4 of this article, and the rights
secured thereby shall not be valid as a defense in any trial
for subversion.”

After considering section 22 with very great care and
after inquiring carefully into the section’s origins, the com-
mittee believes it has no place in a declaration of rights;
its reasoning may be briefly summarized as follows:

1. In the first place, bills of rights historically guar-
antee the rights of the people by imposing limits upon the
power of the state whereas this section defines and pro-
vides for the punishment of a new crime. Its provisions
thus are at odds with the historic function of a declaration
of rights in that they restrict liberty rather than guarantee
it.

It is true that certain criminal acts traditionally have
been recognized in bills of rights. For example, section 21
of the present constitution deals with treason, while section
18 deals with libel prosecutions. But in both of these cases
the language of the section is couched as a limitation on
the power of the state to prosecute the crime in question
and not as an affirmation of the right of the state to
punish. Section 22, on the contrary, as at present consti-
tuted, defines a new crime hitherto unknown to common
law or constitutional law. It thus appears to place new
limits upon the liberties of the people rather than to
guarantee the liberties of the people against their abuse
by the power of the state. It is therefore technically at
odds with the proper subject matter of a bill of rights
and ought to be eliminated from the Michigan declaration
of rights for this reason, if for no other.

2. A second serious objection to the section is to be
found in the vague and confusing language of paragraph 3.
This paragraph, if read literally, seems to be radically at
odds with the guarantee of freedom of speech set forth in
section 4 of the declaration of rights. Read in this fashion,
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it constitutes an outright denial of the right of freedom
of speech and of press as a defense whenever the state
might choose to undertake a prosecution for the crime in
question. Such a construction, if correct, renders the para-
graph radically unconstitutional as a violation of the
elementary guarantees of freedom of speech and freedom
of the press as incorporated in the first amendment to the
Constitution of the United States, and imposed upon the
states through the inclusion of first amendment guarantees
in the content of the first section of the fourteenth amend-
ment.

8. Finally, the committee believes that this section was
added to the constitution at a time when the people of the
state of Michigan, very properly concerned with the threat
to freedom and liberty posed by the communist menace,
were momentarily diverted from their historic recognition
of the necessity of preserving constitutional rights even for
those persons who may be accused quite properly of the
most despicable crimes against the public security and
safety.

In recommending the elimination of section 22 in the
present constitution, the committee wishes to make clear
that it is in no sense advocating any diminution of the
power of the state, the courts and the legislature, to define
and punish, within proper constitutional limits, the crime
of subversion or like offenses against the public safety
and security of the state (acts of criminal syndicalism,
sedition, and the like). To emphasize this point, it submits
herewith, in an accompanying report, the text of a pro-
posed resolution memorializing the legislature to this effect
so that its position with respect to the elimination of sec-
tion 22 shall be completely clear.

“SEC. —— THE ENUMERATION IN THIS CONSTI-
TUTION OF CERTAIN RIGHTS SHALL NOT BE CON-
STRUED TO DENY OR DISPARAGE OTHERS RE-
TAINED BY THE PEOPLE.”

Comment: This language is taken from the ninth amend-
ment to the Constitution of the United States. The com-
mittee believes that its incorporation in the Michigan con-
stitution will set up a sound state parallel. The language
recognizes that no bill of rights can ever enumerate or
guarantee all the rights of the people and that liberty under
law is an ever growing and ever changing conception of a
living society developing in a system of ordered liberty..

Footnote: The committee report, as presented, comprises
only the portions of the declaration of rights which appear
in the 1908 constitution, together with such changes, dele-
tions, and additions as the committee has deemed it advis-
able to make. The committee has under consideration a
number of proposals, the substance of which in the opinion
of the committee may properly be dealt within separate
additional sections.

Appendix

The following are the recommendations and decisions of
the committee on judicial branch with reference to sections
11 through 19 of article II:

Sec. 11. That this section should remain as it is now
constituted in the 1908 constitution and that the word
SINSURRECTION” not be included.

See. 12. That a period be inserted after the word
“gttorney”, and that all language appearing thereafter in
the present section be deleted and the additions made by
thé committee on declaration of rights, suffrage and elec-
tions not be included.

Sec. 13. Concurs unanimously with the committee on
ﬂecla‘rﬂtion ‘of rights, suffrage and elections.

Sec 14. '.l‘hat the first sentence of the section be
ghansed go as to read, “NO PERSON SHALL BE PUT
EOPABDY TWICE FOR THE SAME OFFENSE.”
‘It 1s pointed out that this is a change from the present
.7 :gection and is a change in the wording of the recommenda-

tion of the committee on declaration of rights but is, in
essence, only the deletion of the words “life or limb”, as
found in the U.S. constitution, which this committee be-
lieves to be obsolete. This committee concurs in the intent
expressed by the committee on declaration of rights in
the change made from the present section. This committee
concurs unanimously in the recommendation of the declara-
tion of rights committee in the remaining portion of this
section.

Sec. 15. Concurs unanimously with recommendation of
the declaration of rights committee.

[The statement regarding section 16 immediately following
is in the form originally submitted. This was ordered re-
vised on January 12 (see below, page 560). The revised
statement appears following this original statement.]

Sec. 16. Concurs in principle with declaration of rights
committee recommendation; words “proceedings” and
“hearings” added at judiciary’s recommendation.

Following is the statement as revised on January 12 (see below,

page 560) by the committee on judicial branch:

Sec. 16. This committee concurs with the recommenda-
tion of the rights committee as they are contained in sen-
tence 1 of said section.

The judicial committee concurs, in principle, with the
recommendations set forth in the second sentence of this
section but recommends that, in addition to the word
“INVESTIGATIONS”, there should be included the words
“proceedings and hearings”. The committee was of the
opinion, also, that the word “persons” might be expanded
to include corporations and business entities in addition to
natural persons.

Sec. 17. Concurs unanimously with recommendations of
the declaration of rights committee.

Sec. 18. Concurs with recommendations of the declara-
tion of rights committee.

[The statement regarding section 19 immediately following
is in the form originally submitted. This was ordered re-
vised on January 12 (see below, page 560). The revised
statement and a motion appears following this original state-
ment.]

Sec. 19. Concurs with the recommendation of declara-
tion of rights committee, but not necessarily for the reasons
given in that committee’s report.

Following i8 the statement as revised on January 12 (see below,

page 560) by the committee on judicial branch and @ motion
of that committee:

Sec. 19. This committee concurs in the recommenda-
tions contained in this section and approves of the word
“JURORS?” in place of the word “CITIZENS” which latter
word was the original choice of the committee on rights
prior to consultation with the committee on judicial branch.
It was the considered opinion of the committee that this
would eliminate any confusion and would leave to the legis-
lature the manner of determining the qualifications of
jurors.

The following motion was likewise passed by the com-
mittee on judicial branch:

That, by approving or concurring in the recommenda-
tions, or any part thereof, of the committee on rights,
guffrage and elections, the committee on judicial branch
does not necessarily concur in, or agree to, all of the rea-
sons and grounds contained in the report of the committee
on rights, suffrage and elections.
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[The following is the resolution, in its corrected form, referred
to in the above supporting reasons submitted by the committee
on declaration of rights, suffrage and elections. This became
Resolution 64.]

A resolution to memorialize the legislature in the matter
of the deletion of section 22 of article II of the 1908
constitution.

Resolved, That the legislature be informed that the dele-
tion of section 22 of article II is not to be construed as
opposing the definition of subversion by the legislature, or
providing a statutory crime of subversion; and be it
further

Resolved, That the last paragraph is held to be of ex-
tremely doubtful constitutionality as a denial of due process
of law and that such a provision would not, in any case,
be within the powers of the legislature; and be it further

Resolved, That the provision is held to be so poorly
drafted that its exact meaning cannot be determined; and
be it further

Resolved, That copies of this resolution be transmitted
to the legislature.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: The committee will be in order.
It is very difficult to read or to be heard.

Dr. Pollock.

MR. POLLOCK: Mr. Chairman, members of the committee,
on behalf of the committee on declaration of rights, suffrage
and elections, I am now pleased to present to you article II
of the present constitution as we have proposed to amend it.

Because of my earlier remarks on the declaration of rights,
dated December 15, I think it is not necessary for me to empha-
size again this evening the basic importance of the matters
dealt with in the declaration of rights. This is the keystone in
our governmental arch. And if ever we deserve wisdom, or
rather if ever we deserve to use wisdom, we deserve to use it
in connection with this article of the constitution. Organs of
government may change. Procedures may change. These in-
alienable rights must be very carefully weighed and under-
stood. I say, therefore, that I welcome not only the criticisms
but the careful analyses of all the delegates in the discussion
of these some 23 sections of the constitution which we have
proposed for your consideration.

Since the matter involves so many questions of law, court
decision and practice, being a mere political scientist and not
a lawyer, I yield now to my colleague, the first vice chairman
of my committee, Mr. Harold Stevens, of Detroit, who will
present the matters as they come along, with the assistance
of the second vice chairman, Mr. Norris, and Judge Gadola, a
distinguished member of our committee. May I say that we had
the benefit of lawyers both inside, therefore, as well as outside
the committee. And now we hope to have the benefit of
discussion on the floor.

I suggest, Mr. Chairman, that this is a matter of great
importance, and perhaps will require considerable discussion.
I hope, therefore, that you will permit me to move that the
committee rise when I think the moment for termination has
come, so that we can carry over to another session this matter
if we are not able to finish it this evening. I now yield to my
colleague, Mr. Stevens, and I suggest, Mr. Chairman, that we
take this matter up section by section.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Mr, Stevens.

MR. STEVENS: Mr. Chairman, fellow delegates, taking
this section by section, section 1 reads:

[Section 1 was read by Mr. Stevens. For text, see above,
page 464.]

If you have done your homework, I am sure you understand
this quite well. This section is declaratory of the basic idea
of free government. The committee recommends that it be
retained without change.

Delegate Proposal 1408, submitted by Mr. Wanger, would
add to this, “The enumeration in this constitution of certain
rights shall not be construed to deny or disparage others re-

tained by the people.” The committee, it will be observed from
the report, believes this section which is modeled upon the
ninth amendment of the federal constitution is appropriate to

_ a declaration of rights, but it recommends its inclusion in the

constitution as a separate section. This will be suggested later.
The purpose of this, of course, is to indicate that the govern-
ment stems from the people. The government is the govern-
ment of the people. The people are sovereign in the govern-
ment. Beyond that, there is little more to say. .

Mr. Chairman, are you going to take these up one at a time?

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: The Chair wishes to advise, un-
less there is objection, that we go through this proposal by
sections and that, as we pass each section, the secretary will
read the next section, and then the proponents will take the
floor.

Is there any further discussion on section 1? If not, it will
pass.

Section 1 is passed.

The secretary will read section 2.

SECRETARY CHASE: Section 2 reads:

[Section 2 was read by the secretary. For text, see above,
page 465.1

MR. STEVENS: That section, Mr. Chairman, it will be
noticed, is changed in only one respect. I should like to yield
to Second Vice Chairman Norris to explain the change in the

wording.
CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Dr. Norris.
MR. NORRIS: Mr. Chairman, I am very happy to represent

the committee on declaration of rights, suffrage and elections
with regard to this and some of the other matters which will
come before the convention. I want to, if I may, express a
personal debt of gratitude to the members of this committee
who have deliberated with great intensity and with great
quality to bring before you the changes which we now recom-
mend. I wish personally to acknowledge a debt of gratitude to
Dr. Alfred Kelly who was with us during the entire proceed-
ings to this date and we look forward to his recommendations
and thinking in the future. I also wish to name for you the
members of this committee. I have not been asked to do so,
but I feel moved to do so because they have worked hard and
long and I think they have produced a set of constructive
recommendations for this convention. In addition to the chair-
man, Dr. Pollock, and first vice chairman, Mr. Harold Stevens,
of Detroit, and myself, there are on this committee Mr. Bea-
man, Mr. Buback, Mrs. Butler, Father Dade, Judge Gadola,
Mrs. Lillian Hatcher, Mr. Robert Hodges, Mr. Hubbs, Mr.
Leppien, Mr. Shaffer, Mr. Shanahan and Mr. White. I per-
sonally have been much moved by the conscientious spirit
which has animated this group of men and women and I
wanted to say that on the record of this convention.
Secondly, I should like to say that there is a bit of human
interest involved in that some time back in the early ’30s,
Mr. Harold Stevens taught my wife and me civics and eco-
nomics as high school students in the city of Detroit, and so
it is with a great deal of pleasure and inspiration that I now
find myself as a vice chairman of this committee working with
him and Dr. Pollock and members of this committee, some 30
years later. This, it seems to me, is some kind of true senti-
ment which ought to be recognized and I wish to recognize it.
With regard to the very fundamental matter that is now
before us, the question of to whom the right of petition might
be addressed, I think the committee wishes to incorporate in
the record of this convention the comment which has heen
stated before you in the journal of January 4. In addition
to that, I should like to make these observations. Under the
United States constitution, the people have the right to petition
the government for the redress of grievances, not merely the
legislature. This is in article I, section 1 of the federal con-
stitution. Similar wording is recommended by the model state
constitution of the national municipal league. The New York
constitution adopted in 1938 contains a formulation that in-
cludes, “government or any department thereof.” The opin!on
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a new comment in front of you and then I hope it can be
speedily disposed of.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Unless there are objections, we
will pass temporarily section 14 and proceed with section 15.

The secretary will read section 15.

SECRETARY CHASE: Section 15.

[Sec. 15 was read by the secretary. For text, see above, page
465.]

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Mr. Stevens.

MR. STEVENS: Mr. Chairman and fellow delegates, I am
going to read the comment here in order that I may not say
something that I did not intend to say. I don’t expect any con-
troversy here. We have not changed this. We simply say:

The committee believes that these guarantees against a
requirement of excessive bail, excessive fine, cruel or
unusual punishment, and the unreasonable detention of
witnesses are satisfactory as now stated and require no
change from the present constitution.

The judiciary committee concurred in this.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Are there any amendments to
section 15? If not, it will be passed.

Section 15 is passed.

Section 16.

Dr. Pollock.

MR. POLLOCK: Mr. Chairman, I move that the com-
mittee do now rise and report to the convention.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: It has been moved that the com-
mittee do now rise. As many as are in favor of the motion will
signify by saying aye. Opposed, no.

The motion does not prevail.

The secretary will read.

SECRETARY CHASE: Section 16.

[Sec. 16 was read by the secretary. For text, see above, page
465.]

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Mr. Stevens.

MR. STEVENS: Mr. Chairman, if you will look at your
section 16 in the journal, please, I would like to yield to Pro-
fessor Norris to explain the change which we made, the addi-
tion which we have made to this provision.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Mr. Norris.

MR. NORRIS: Mr. Chairman and ladies and gentlemen
of the committee of the whole, with regard to the recommended
change of the committee on declaration of rights, suffrage and
elections, I'd like to make these observations: first of all, the
proposed language is a very slight modification of a comparable
provision in the recently adopted Alaska constitution. The
judiciary committee concurred in principle and added 2 words
which were incorporated in the language which is now before
the house. Secondly, I'd like to say that this morning we were
notified by the civil liberties committee of the state bar of
Michigan that they also concurred with the principle of this
particular proposition now before us.

May I say by way of elucidation — because I suspect that if
this should meet with the favorable consideration of this body
the courts might construe this — I have given this considerable
attention. I want to read this very brief statement with- regard
to this proposal.

It is the purpose of this additional language to facilitate the
important and valuable function of legislative and executive
investigations by protecting the right of all persons to fair and
just treatment in the course of such investigations. It is
through procedural rules that the individual is protected against
arbitrary governmental action. The quintessence of liberty is
the protection of the individual against arbitrary application
of the collective powers of the state. It is submitted that there
is need for such fair and just treatment and, when fair and
just treatment is accorded to all persons, there is a greater
disposition to assist such legislative and executive investiga-
tions in the discharge of their lawful duties. Dean Griswold
of the Harvard law school has placed the problem in these
terms :

Now let us turn to the question which has been con-
stantly recurring in recent days. Does this basic idea
have any application to legislative investigations? Do these
investigations always measure up to our ideal of due
process of law? I think it fair to say that a large section
of the public has from time to time felt a sense of in-
justice with respect to some of these hearings; and if they
have, then there is a situation where the ancient ideal
of due process is involved. .

A failure to appreciate the intimate relation between
sound procedure and the preservation of liberty is implicit,
may I say, in that saddest and most short sighted remark
of our times, “I don’t like the methods, but . . ..” For
methods and procedures are the essence of due process
and are of vital importance to liberty. As Mr. Justice
Brandeis wrote some 30 years ago, “. .. in the develop-
ment of our liberty insistence on procedural regularity
has been a large factor.” More recently Mr. Justice Frank-
furter has put the same truth in these words, ‘“The history
of liberty has largely been the history of observance of
procedural safeguards.”

Fair and just procedures are the basis for effective investiga-
tions. Chief Justice Warren has summarized the basic policy
considerations on this relationship in the Watkins Case, 354
U.S. 178 (1957). He said:

The power of the congress to conduct investigations
is inherent in the legislative process. That power is
broad. It encompasses inquiries concerning the adminis-
tration of existing laws as well as proposed or possibly
needed statutes. It includes surveys of defects in our
social, economic or political system for the purpose of
enabling the congress to remedy them. It comprehends
probes into departments of the federal government to
expose corruption, inefficiency or waste. But, broad as is
this power of inquiry, it is not unlimited.

There is no general authority to expose the private
affairs of individuals without justification in terms of
the function of the congress. This was freely conceded
by the solicitor general in his argument of the Watkins
Case. Nor is the congress a law enforcement or trial
agency. These are functions of the executive and judicial
departments of government. No inquiry is an end in itself;
it must be related to, and in furtherance of, a legitimate
task of the congress. Investigations conducted solely for
the personal aggrandizement of the investigators or to
punish those investigated are indefensible.

Moreover, Justice Warren points out that it is unquestionably

the duty of citizens
. . . to cooperate with the congress in its efforts to
obtain the facts needed for intelligent legislative action.
It is their unremitting obligation to respond to subpoenas,
to respect the dignity of the congress and its committees
and to testify fully with respect to matters within the
province of proper investigation.

But, Justice Warren points out that the investigations and the

duty of citizens to cooperate

. assumes that the constitutional rights of witnesses

will be respected by the congress as they are in a court of
justice. The bill of rights is applicable to investigations
as to all forms of government action. Witnesses cannot be
compelled, for example, to give evidence against themselves.
They cannot be subjected to unreasonable search and
seizure. Nor can the first amendment freedoms of speech,
press, religion, or political belief and associations be
abridged, . . .

by such investigations. Justice Warren continues:

But the power to investigate, broad as it may be, is
also subject to recognized limitations. It cannot be used
to inquire into private affairs unrelated to a valid legisla-
tive purpose. Nor does it extend to an area in which
congress is forbidden to legislate. Similarly, the power to
investigate must not be confused with any of the powers
of law enforcement; those powers are assigned under our
constitution to the executive and the judiciary. Still fur-
ther limitations on the power to investigate are found in
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the specific individual guarantees of the bill of rights,

such as the fifth amendment’s privilege against self

incrimination which is in issue here.

In short, Chief Justice Warren declares that some “specific
individual guarantees” of the bill of rights apply to the in-
vestigative process. Hence, it is germane that in the bill of
rights of the Michigan constitution the people may properly
seek to protect the individual against unfair and unjust con-
duct by legislative and judicial investigations.

It may be asked, does not the due process clause protect the
individual against unfair and unjust treatment? Yes, but
not in executive or legislative investigations. The fact is that
the due process safeguards of a criminal trial have not been
interpreted to apply to legislative or executive investigations.
While many investigations have unfairly and unjustly as-
sumed the character of a criminal trial and abused the prestige
of government, the rights of individuals, and our concept of
separation of powers in so doing, the normal rights of an
accused have not been judicially accorded to a witness in an
investigation. In a criminal trial a defendant has at least the
following rights:

The right to notice of the nature of the accusation; the right
to confront and question witnesses; the right to counsel; the
right to subpoena witnesses; the right to take the stand in
one’s own defense; the right not to take the stand, or decline to
answer incriminating questions, without adverse comment; the
right to rules of evidence; and the right to a prompt public
and fair trial.

But the courts have held that only some specific guarantees
of the bill of rights apply to legislative hearings. The specific
guarantees protected in legislative hearings have been the
right of a witness not to answer self incriminating questions,
the right not to be subject to unreasonable search and seizure,
and the right not to answer questions invading first amend-
ment freedoms of speech and association. The courts have also
held that questions propounded in such hearings must be
pertinent to the mandate of the inquiry. While there has been
language in some decisions that go beyond these protections
the specific holdings have been confined, in the main, to the
specific guarantees outlined above. The court has not held
that the due process clause applies to legislative or executive
investigations.

The need for fair and just treatment may be summarized as
follows: while due process generally means simply fairness,
experience with many legislative and executive investigations
— federal and state — across the land in recént years, amply
indicate that even the fairness in elemental due process has
been wanting. The privilege against self incrimination pro-
tects only against punishment; it does not protect against
defamation of character —and such defamation, imputations
and charges have been made under the auspices of such in-
vestigations — nor does it protect against the imputation of
unfair business practices or, indeed, a charge of treason.

The court decisions to date have not protected individuals
against being charged with innumerable. offenses, offenses
not proved nor intended to be proved. Investigators have as-
sumed a right to ridicule, expose, demean, deprecate and
intimidate witnesses with impunity. The witness usually has
only a limited right to counsel, no right to submit a prepared
statement, does not have a clear right to a clear definition
of the scope of each inquiry, no right to a transcript of the
proceedings, no influence on executive or open sessions, no
opportunity to restrain the issuance of public statements by
committee members, no right to confront witnesses, cross-
examine witnesses, or call rebuttal witnesses, no right to
decline appearances on radio or television, and no right to
appear before subcommittees composed of more than one per-
son.

Moreover, nonwitnesses, who are the subject of adverse
hearsay comment, identification or charges at such hearings,
with great resultant irreparable damage to their reputation and
livelihood, are usually not permitted the right to appear,
answer or rebut.

Mr. William T. Gossett, vice president and general counsel,
Ford motor company, arrived at conclusions precisely pertinent

here in an address delivered before the Michigan judges’ as-
sociation meeting at the Dearborn inn on September 4, 1952.
Mr. Gossett said —and I quote:

... We should be the first to recognize that there is a
proposition at the heart of American life which is the
constant and overriding preoccupation of the people; and
that the people seem to give their confidence and praise
to those who endeavor to protect this proposition from
substantial impairment.

The proposition is that, no matter how complex society
may be or become, the individual must be the focus of all
public and private efforts. It is the belief that the human
being has that divine spark which alone insures progress
toward a better world. It is the belief that because of this
divine spark, every individual, however cantankerous or
sinful he may be, has basic rights which the self interest
of society demands be protected and expanded, consistent,
of course, with the rights of the group of which he is a
part. Consider, for example —

Mr. Gossett continued

— current developments in the conduct of congressional

investigations and similar quasi judicial processes. They

have proliferated in recent years and, like the printing of
cheap money, have debased the original coin. This once
honorable device is today being used in ways that can-

‘not fail to provoke deep concern about maintaining the

rights of the individual.

Congressional investigation is essential, of course, to the
proper functioning of our government machinery. It has
been sanctioned by usage and upheld by judicial decision.
No thoughtful person would withhold from lawmakers
their right, indeed their duty, to investigate. Public airing
of matters relevant to the creation of new law and enforce-
ment of existing law is vital to democracy.

But manifestly it is not essential to the investigative
process that a person summoned before a legislative com-
mittee be denied constitutional rights: the right to cross
examine those who have testified against him; the right
to call witnesses in his own behalf ; and the right to answer
then and there the accusations made against him.

It is not essential, moreover, that individuals whose
beliefs or conduct are under scrutiny be subjected to public
pillory or be slandered with impunity by investigators
who are secure in the knowledge that there can be no
retaliation in court. And last, but by no means least, there
is no need to compound the inherent invasion of indivi-
ual privacy or the damage to reputation by televising
the proceedings. In the light of the abuses which have
sprung up in the investigative process, the possible injury
to the individual is multiplied many times when his ordeal
is projected into the homes of millions of his fellow citizens.

End of Mr. Gossett’s quote.

It is not suggested that all of the abuses of executive and
legislative hearings can be corrected, or be corrected com-
pletely, by any one branch of government. Varied and deli-
cate problems are presented and each coordinate branch does
not have the sole responsibility for the proper conduct of
government. But each branch — the courts, the legislature,
and the executive —should have a duty to protect and pro-
mote fair and just procedures in investigations. The urge for
reform of past and current procedures cannot be denied.
There is nationwide interest. What then can move each to
assume its proper and unique function in protecting the rights
of every person to fair and just executive or legislative hear-
ing?

I conclude that it is submitted that each branch can evolve
within its own proper sphere appropriate measures to deal
with this problem. But the absent impulse and incentive must
be provided. This incentive can best be provided by a con-
stitutional mandate. While Michigan has not had an object-
ively measurable record of the abuses in legislative and execu-
tive hearings, the power and capability exist.

Parenthetically I might refer to several proceedings. I had
my attention brought in the judiciary committee by Delegate
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Ford, for example, to the investigation of the J.P.s, a situation
where in the morning an investigation was conducted of an
individual and in the afternoon the gentleman committed
suicide. There has been the Callahan committee; there has
been the Francis committee; there have been a whole host of
committees in which there have been abuses. My attention was
invited by one delegate to this convention to the fact that he
resigned from one of our own committees because of the con-
duct of the chairman. I am sure that we could recite in-
stances which would indicate that this is a Michigan concern
as well as a federal concern.

Such was the view indeed of the people of our newest
state, Alaska, in adopting the language of this particular sub-
mission. Alaska’s experience in this regard, like that of Mich-
igan, was limited. But Alaska realized that the way to such
abuses exists, and hence the will to such abuses must be denied.
The experience of the nation, of other states, indeed, of other
nations, can and should be taken into account by delegates
drawing up a new Michigan constitution.

Justice Cardozo said that a constitution must be based on
principles, not only for the passing hour but for the future.
Both the passing hour and the future require that the right
of all persons to fair and just treatment in the course of legis-
lative and executive investigation shall not be infringed. It
is the precise purpose of a bill of rights to foresee and fore-
stall arbitrary, unfair and unjust conduct of government
against all persons.

And for these reasons we respectfully recommend that you
favorably consider the recommendations of the committee.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Mr. Leibrand.

MR. LEIBRAND: Mr. Chairman, may I address a ques-
tion to Delegate Stevens? Delegate Stevens, you yielded to
Delegate Norris. I am wondering if we are to consider the
statement or report made by Delegate Norris just completed
as part of the official report of the committee on rights,
suffrage and elections, or is it merely his individual statement?

MR. STEVENS: Judge Leibrand, the official report of the
committee is contained in the journal. The statements recently
made by Professor Norris are those that he used before the
committee in introducing and sponsoring this proposal. Am I
not right, Professor Norris?

MR. NORRIS: That’s right, Mr. Stevens. However, I don’t
feel there is anything inconsistent between what I said and
what is in the comment that is appended to this section of
the report.

MR. STEVENS: That was not the question. Judge Lei-
brand asked me a question. I want to be sure I answered it
correctly.

MR. NORRIS: I think it is an appropriate elucidation of
the reasons which motivated the submission, sir.

MR. STEVENS: Have I answered your question, Judge
Leibrand ?

MR. LEIBRAND: I was very happy to have you do so.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Mr. Heideman.

MR. HEIDEMAN: Mr. Chairman and fellow delegates,
I’'d just like to read something and pose a question. The pro-
posed language, or additional language, reads, “The right of
all persons to fair and just treatment in the course of legisla-
tive and executive proceedings, investigations, and hearings
shall not be infringed.” The committee comment reads like
this:

. ... The language proposed by the committee does not

in any sense impose categorically the guarantees of pro-

cedural due process upon such investigations. Instead,
it leaves to the legislature, the executive and finally to
the courts, the task of developing fair rules of procedure

appropriate to such investigations and hearings. . . .

Well, it’s like starting to take a hot bath and you turn on so
much cold water you end up in a cold bath. I mean, what
does this mean? It says “. .. shall not be infringed.” And
the committee comment says, “Well, after all, we don’t mean
what we said we meant. This is the constitutional language.”

MR. STEVENS: I think I can speak for the committee

as a whole. We were convinced that it was well to put into the

constitution a provision which might guide the courts, the
legislature, the governor, the administrative board in these
hearings where they bring in witnesses or in some cases
defendants. All we want to do to put it as simply as possible
is try and guarantee fairness in the hearing. Does that
answer your question?

MR. HEIDEMAN: No, Delegate Stevens, it doesn’t because
now you use the term ‘“guarantee” and the language says that
it does not in any sense “impose categorically the guarantees
of procedural due process investigations.” Instead, it leaves
it to the legislature. Why put it in? The executive, in par-
ticular. We don’t generally think of the executive as laying
down the rules of fair procedure.

MR. STEVENS: Probably I didn’t make myself clear on
that, Dr. Heideman. I meant to say we hoped that the con-
stitution, as we changed it, would be a guide not only to the
courts but to the legislature and administrative bodies to be
fair and just. It is not expected that due process of law in the
sense which it would apply in a court would necessarily apply
in an administrative hearing or in a legislative hearing. It
never has and it isn’t intended that it should.

MR. HEIDEMAN: Then shouldn’t the language be modi-
fied ?

MR. STEVENS:

MR. HEIDEMAN :

MR. STEVENS: No. I think all it says is “The right . . .
to fair and just treatment ... shall not be infringed.” It
doesn’t say that due process of law is required or shall not
be infringed.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI:
section 16?

SECRETARY CHASE: Mr. Cudlip has offered the follow-
ing amendment:

1. Amend page 4, line 4, after “all” by striking out “persons”
and inserting “individuals, firms and corporations”; so the
language will then read:

The right of all individuals, firms and corporations to

fair and just treatment in the course of legislative and

executive proceedings, investigations, and hearings shall
not be infringed.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Mr. Cudlip.

MR. CUDLIP: Mr. Chairman and members, I think the
committee is to be praised for its insight and perception in
proposing this change and making it a part of Michigan con-
stitutional architecture. As Member Norris has said, these
hearings at all levels of government are increasing and some-
times seem to be oppressive.

It is true in my experience that the people that appear be-
fore these hearings appear in large measure as representatives
of groups and not in their individual capacities. The purpose
of my amendment, if this section 16 is adopted, is to make it
very clear that persons not only means individuals but also
means firms and corporations, such as universities, private
business corporations, labor unions and all other artificial
persons.

Now, why the suggestion? Simply to avoid future argument,
litigation, expense and nuisances. The first sentence of sec-
tion 16, which is unchanged and which provides all of us with
ancient rights, uses the word “person.” This sentence contains
a mixture of rights which we are entitled to constitutionally.
“Person” in that sentence has been defined by our supreme
court in the case of the privilege against self incrimination to
include only the individual. That was recently established
in the case of St. John vs. General Motors, 308 Michigan Re-
ports, 333, where the corporation was not entitled to invoke that
privilege, but only the individual working for the corporation if
he were guilty.

Now, on the other hand, the same first sentence, in speak-
ing about due process of law, which Mr. Norris carefully
defined for us again, does apply to corporations, cities, labor
unions, charitable organizations, universities, firms, etc.
Therefore, I say that I think if the section is to be adopted,
we can avoid lots of expense and lots of argument if we make
it clear that we intend that individuals, firms and corpora-

Which language are you talking about?
“Infringed.”

Are there any amendments to
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tions covering all the entities I have mentioned, are to be pro-
tected and not simply the individual who appears in his own
right. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Mr. Danhof.

MR. DANHOF: Mr. Chairman, in order to clear up a slight
matter of confusion, I would like to have the delegates turn to
page 283 of the Journal 50 in the appendix wherein there is
contained a report of recommendations and decisions of the
judiciary committee. At the time we considered this matter we
were passing it along to the rights committee practically as fast
as we voted on it. The section marked section 16 should read
as follows:

This committee concurs with the recommendations of
the rights committee as they are contained in sentence 1
of said section. The judicial committee concurs, in prin-
ciple, with the recommendations set forth in the second
sentence of this section but recommends that, in addition
to the word “investigations”, there should be included the
words “proceedings and hearings”.

This was in fact done after the report back and the rights
committee corrected it. Further —

The committee was of the opinion also that the word
“persons” might be expanded to include corporations and
business entities in addition to natural persons.

This now deals with the amendment that Mr. Cudlip, who is
a member of my committee, made.

If I might go on further, since the idea in section 19 was
brought up. As I transmitted it back to Dr. Pollock —and I
say that it is not his fault or anybody’s fault; he was in there
when we took the vote and they went out and the official
written report arrived later — the report should read this way,
and I would ask that it be printed in the journal tomorrow to
correct any misapprehension:

This committee concurs in the recommendations contained
in this section and approves of the word ‘“jurors” in place
of the word “citizens” which latter word was the original
choice of the committee on rights prior to consultation
with the committee on judicial branch.

This has been done.

It was the considered opinion of the committee that this
would eliminate any confusion and would leave to the
legislature the manner of determining the qualifications
of jurors.

This suggestion was likewise incorporated in the final report
and the final committee proposal that we are now considering.
And further, the following motion was likewise passed —

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Mr. Danhof, the Chair would
like to suggest that you wait until the committee rises and then
submit that statement and it will appear in the journal to-
mMoOrrow.

MR. DANHOF: 1 wanted in particular—since we are dis-
cussing section 16—to bring out what we had there.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: That will be done. But you see,
you are in section 16.

MR. DANHOF: 1 went over to 19. But go ahead. That’s
all right.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Mr. Stevens.

MR. STEVENS: Mr. Chairman, the rights and suffrage
committee has no objection to the amendment.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Mr. Higgs.

MR. HIGGS: Mr. Chairman and fellow delegates, I also
am on the judiciary committee and it is true that the com-
mittee concurred after a very brief consideration of this matter
in principle. Now I think there are some very serious ques-
tions that should be asked of the committee in this particular
connection and perhaps Delegate Norris would be kind enough
to answer some of these.

The first question I have deals with that part of the com-
ment that reads—and I am reading from page 280 of the
journal —:

Instead, it leaves to the legislature, the executive and
‘finally to the courts, the task of developing fair rules of
procedure appropriate to such investigations and hear-

Now, would I be correct in assuming, in view of the comment,

that all legislative and executive proceedings, investigations
and hearings then would be subject in the final determination
as to the rules of procedure where the rights of persons are
involved to the rules of the court? That would be the Michigan
supreme court, would it, Mr. Norris?

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Mr. Norris.

MR. NORRIS: The thinking behind the proposal and the
submission before you was that there was, if you will, a con-
current jurisdiction on the part of the coordinate branches of
government to evolve such just and fair rules as would reach
that objective for all people coming before such investigations
or proceedings or hearings. And, if this were passed, it would
be a duty in the first instance upon the legislature to evolve
codes and statutes, it would be a duty on the part of the
executive department to promulgate such rules for the conduct
of executive investigations as would comport with fair and just
treatment and also the court would review this and evolve the
fair and just rules.

Now, we have to understand that we are not talking about
due process for a very important reason. We do not wish to
encourage the trend of regarding legislative hearings as quasi
criminal trials. We want to get away from that and get them to
think in terms of the purpose of the investigation or the hear-
ing, which is to get facts upon which to predicate remedial
legislation. That’s why we do not use the words due process.
We're talking in terms of fair and just treatment and we
recognize a rather tender and sensitive area in the separation
of powers doctrine.

That’s why we were thinking in type of language.

MR. HIGGS: I'm very interested in that feature of it.
When you mention separation, I presume you are speaking
of separation of the executive, legislative and judicial branches
of government. When you use the words here, ‘“Instead, it leaves
to the legislature, the executive and finally to the courts, the
task of developing fair rules of procedure appropriate. . . .”
we are speaking of all legislative and executive proceedings—
all of them, all investigations and all hearings. We're going to
leave it to the courts to determine how these branches of gov-
ernment are going to do business; is that correct?

MR. NORRIS: I think the intent is to relate what we
are thinking about to the investigative hearings and pro-
ceedings.

MR. HIGGS: That’'s not what is said here.

MR. NORRIS: I appreciate the point that you are making.
There is a question there. I don’t think it is the intent of
this language to say the courts would review the rules by
which the legislature conducts itself in its own proceedings.
I think that what it is related to is with reference to the
public in its investigative operations, particularly with regard
to hearings before committees and executive hearings brought
to the public.

MR. HIGGS: Mr. Chairman and fellow delegates, I would
like to speak, then, in opposition to both the Cudlip amend-
ment and the committee report inasmuch as in the first place
the language covers every possible kind of proceeding of the
coordinate branches of government. We are not talking about
concurrent jurisdiction; we are talking about finally leaving
to the courts how they are going to do business.

Now, I'd like to call to your attention in this connection
the fact that on the Supreme Court of Michigan, which theo-
retically is an elective body, 5 of the members of our supreme
court were appointed and placed on that court solely by ap-
pointment of the governor and the sixth member of the court
also came to the court by appointment. Now, this is reaching a
long way from the electorate. It says “finally to the court.”
If we are going to place finally in the courts the very broad
and uncertain idea of what is fair and just in the conduct
of their proceedings, investigations and hearings, I think that’s
going too far.

We've seen, I think yesterday, how a court divided 5 to 4,
with one man swinging one way or the other can determine
ultimately the final disposition of a matter in the face of
the electorate of Michigan; and I think that this is a very
dangerous doctrine to put in our constitution. Especially you
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will note that under section 16 the first sentence is dealing
with an entirely different matter and I don’t understand and
you might answer, Mr. Norris, why this is incorporated in that
particular section. What is the effect of it? How far will

this go?
MR. NORRIS: First of all, may I make this observation.
The words “. . . and finally to the courts . . .” are an in-

terpretation in the comment and are not in the language
of section 16. The idea here is to create a constitutional duty
upon each of the coordinate branches of government to deal
fairly and justly as far as investigative hearings of proceed-
ings are concerned and I don’t see that there is that confusion.

With regard to the proposition that this particular proposed
language in its relation to the due process law and self
incrimination laws, I think these are all elements of fairness
and justness in proceedings. To be sure, the first 2 relate
principally to criminal matters, but not only to criminal mat-
ters, and similarly with regard to the investigations. I think
it is indigenous and I think our sister state, Alaska, recog-
nized that when they put this particular provision in similar
form in this particular area of concern. I think it is germane
and related and serves a useful purpose in that juncture. I
don’t know what your point is with regard to the courts in-
volved.

MR. HIGGS: Let me ask this further question then, if
what you mean is concurrent jurisdiction, doesn’t the legis-
lature now have the power to establish rules for fair and just
treatment and doesn’t the executive have power to establish
such rules? And if you leave it finally to the courts, aren’t
you placing the ultimate responsibility there?

MR. NORRIS: I'm sure they have the power but we here,
as a declaration of rights, are declaring the right of the per-
sons not to have fair and just treatment infringed. So that
when you speak of power, I think that’s unrelated to what
we are talking about. If the legislature had exercised this
power to promulgate rules for fair hearings and things of
that kind, both on a statewide and federal basis, perhaps there
would be less need for this particular proposal. But the fact
is that you have found the use of the collective power of the
state to abuse witnesses and nonwitnesses, which has created
the need for a declaration of the right, which is promulgated
in this particular recommended language.

MR. HIGGS: Mr. Chairman and fellow delegates, I am not
going to presume any further upon the time of this committee
to express my particular viewpoints, but I do urge you to
examine this very carefully. I'd like to hear from other dele-
gates on it but it seems to me that Delegate Norris is aiming at
a national and federal situation rather than at our problem in
Michigan.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Mr. Stevens.

MR. STEVENS: Mr. Chairman, the committee did not
intend and does not think it said anything which would
mean necessarily a court review of all these things that you
seem to have in mind.

It is true the committee recognized that the problem with
which this deals is mostly a federal problem but wanted to
make the application to the state if the matter should appear.
It is also true that the committee recognized the fact that the
consequent witnesses sometimes irritate members of committees
and commissions and perhaps lead them to actions which are
not proper and right but we didn’t feel there was much we
could do about that. We simply thought a person called by
subpoena or certainly one who appears voluntarily should be
treated with courtesy and fairness, that his personal reputa-
tion should not be impugned if he is there merely to make
statements to the committee — certainly so long as he volun-
tarily cooperates with the committee. I don’t follow your
construction which you give on this. Certainly the committee
had no intention of that.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: The question now is on the Cud-
lip amendment and the Chair will recognize Mr. Lundgren,
if he would care to speak.

MR. LUNDGREN: Thank you. I rise in objection to the
committee report and I'd rather see the original language of

the section here retained as is because I believe and concur with
my friend here that we are going beyond the state of Michigan
and getting involved in federal processes. I do not think we are
here to do our business in that position. I hate to be in
objection to Mr. Cudlip’s amendment but if we adopt the com-
mittee’s report, then I'd support the amendment. But I do
object to our getting into fields of national legislation, which
I think the federal government should take care of properly.
We should stick to the business of this section as it was
originally intended and take care of the state of Michigan.

I would ask this question of the committee and Mr. Stevens,
just how many problems has Michigan had in this particular
condition that made you change the language of the original
section?

MR. STEVENS:
added to it.

MR. LUNDGREN: Your additions, that’s right.

MR. STEVENS: We had no intention to try to control
practices in the federal government, Delegate Lundgren. Our
only purpose was to guide us if it should be necessary 20 or 25
years from now or any other time in the state of Michigan.
It would have no effect whatever on anything of that sort in
the federal government. We have no jurisdiction over the
federal government.

MR. LUNDGREN: I realize that, but all through the
comment you allude to the problems of the quasi judicial hear-
ings at the federal level and things like that. I believe we
should stick to the state problem.

MR. STEVENS: The allusion to the federal government is
one of comparison. I was a little bit reluctant to put them in
myself for fear somebody would object, just as you have. We
used them only as a matter of comparison. We do not feel that
there has been any very great abuse in Michigan; however, we
do not feel that if the matter should come up in the future we
are doing anybody any harm by asking that a witness be en-
titled to fair and just treatment.

MR. LUNDGREN: Thank you very much. Then you
achieve by your statement just what I am objecting to.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: The question is on the Cudlip
amendment. The Chair will ask Mr. Gover and future speakers
to confine themselves to the amendment.

MR. GOVER: Mr. Chairman, mine isn’t entirely on the
Cudlip amendment. I was on my feet when Mr. Stevens made
some statements a few minutes ago in his preliminary state-
ments and I wanted to question him in regard to that. May I
proceed?

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Proceed.

MR. GOVER: Mr. Stevens, in your preliminary remarks
you referred to administrative boards and administrative
bodies and yet in your new wording you do not have those
mentioned. Where do they come in with regard to the legis-
lative or executive proceedings?

MR. STEVENS: The purpose was to try to give any per-
son called as a witness to give information, whether before
a board, commission, legislative committee, any state organiza-
tion of that sort—mnot a court—fair and just treatment.
That was all.

MR. GOVER: Then Mr. Stevens, shouldn’t we have an
amendment in your wording there, “The right of all persons
to fair and just treatment in the course of . . .” and insert in
there “administrative, legislative and executive proceedings’?
Shouldn’t the word “administrative” be in there in that case
as you use the words “administrative boards and administrative
bodies” in your statements?

MR. STEVENS: We understand that the judiciary com-
mittee has a provision at the present time that it is considering
to deal with administrative boards.

MR. GOVER: O, thank you.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Dr. Nord.

MR. NORD: I have some comments to make. One of them
has been partly anticipated by Mr. Gover and I'm not certain
whether it’s been cleared up entirely. There is nothing about
administrative law in the language that I see here in this
section. However, it has been mentioned a few times that this

We didn’t change any language except we
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is intended to cover administrative law and I would like to ask
Mr. Stevens a question on that. I note that it was mentioned
and it is mentioned in the report that due process is not in-
tended to be guaranteed in the cases listed in the new language.
As I understand it— and I’'m not an expert on administrative
law — but I believe I am correct in saying that in administra-
tive law there is due process. Do you happen to know the
answer to that, sir?

MR. STEVENS: My answer would be our purpose is to
provide for just and fair treatment by any executive organiza-
tion. We do not by this intend to take away the right of due
process where it exists.

MR. NORD: Thank you very much. That satisfies me
entirely on that point.

The only other point was raised, I believe, when Mr. Higgs
raised a worthwhile problem that we ought to consider further.
I might add that Mr. Cudlip’s amendment is a point well
taken and the committee report as a whole is good, but never-
theless, there is this problem raised by Mr. Higgs.

The problem has to do, I believe, with the word “proceed-
ings.” I note in the first part of the report it talks about in-
vestigations and towards the end of the report it says ‘“in-
vestigations and hearings.” But in the body of the section it
says 3 things, “investigations, hearings and proceedings” in
different order. I also note that the word “proceedings” was
not originally in the proposal as the committee on rights
drafted it and I gather the word “proceedings” was put in by
the judiciary committee and has apparently caused some
problem. But the problem that was pointed out by Mr. Higgs
is that if you read this extremely broadly, you’ll get into that
question of whether the judiciary could possibly tell the
legislature how to conduct its hearings. I really don’t think
it’s a terrible problem because it states in the beginning, ‘“The
right of all persons to fair and just treatment in the course
of . . . proceedings.” Of course, in the ordinary proceedings
of the legislature, individual persons would not be involved.

Nevertheless, I wonder whether you think, Mr. Stevens, that
there would be any advantage in taking the word “proceed-
ings” out in order to satisfy any objections that have been
raised.

MR. STEVENS: As you have indicated, Dr. Nord, that
was suggested by the judiciary committee. We acceded to
their request. I think I would like to yield to Delegate Danhof
on the matter. Our committee accepted the suggestion of the
judiciary committee in this matter. .

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Mr. Danhof.

MR. DANHOF': I might state that I think, as I recall
the discussion—and I do not have the transcript, although
we have it on tape — that investigations could be interpreted
to be extremely narrow and might be limited to prehearing
activity on the part of any particular committee in the legis-
lature or as they have it, in the executive, and that adding
the words ‘“proceedings and hearings” broadens the activity
from not only the investigating stage, but through the actual
public hearings and the proceedings before some legislative
committee. As I recall, Brother Cudlip of the committee also
had some comments on this. I am trying to reconstruct in my
mind specifically who talked on this point and proposed the
recommendation. I know that he also raised the problem
of “persons”, which he has raised today and it seems to me
that if Delegate Cudlip can recall, maybe he can enlighten us
further, Excuse me, I guess it was Mr. Cudlip on the “per-
sons” and Mr. Ostrow on “proceedings and hearings”. Mr.
Ostrow can proceed.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Mr. Ostrow.

MR. OSTROW: All the discussion so far has been about
legislative investigations. My understanding of this article
and the reason I voted for it in the judiciary committee was
that it was much broader than that. It is not just a hope; it
is-a guarantee, or at least that is my understanding.

- ‘Now, the principal idea in back of this “proceeding” was that
anybody that has to submit to a proceeding, investigation
or-hearing, regardless of what you call it— and they'll call it
different things-in different departments — is entitled to fair

and just treatment. Everybody is entitled to fair and just
treatment, no matter what business they have with govern-
ment. It's a rule of ordinary decent human conduct and
there is no reason why people in government shouldn’t be
ordinary decent human beings. Now, the legal distinction
between “fair and just treatment” and your present rule
making power is this: on review of a rule of any administrative
agency — and they are part of the executive department—
the only question is whether that department has the authority
to make the rules and, if they have the authority to make the
rules, the court can’t do anything about it if the rules aren’t
fair and just.

‘With the growth of all the administrative agencies and with
the growth of proceedings — some formal and some just by
a letter calling you in to the office —they can do you more
damage than the most formal investigation. People are entitled
to ordinary decent, fair and just treatment. And this was
intended — at least on my part—to cover the whole gamut
of both the legislative and executive departments.

You can be called in to one department by a simple letter. If
you come there with an attorney and the attorney begins to
say, “Now what is he charged with and who are the witnesses?”
they say, “Well, this is not a formal hearing.” But when they
get through with this thing that they don’t call a formal
hearing or an investigation — and that’s why we used the word
“proceeding” — the end result is that somebody’s license is can-
celled or something is done to him.

Now, fair and just treatment is an ordinary rule of decent
human conduct and there is no reason why the government and
all its agencies shouldn’t be subjected to the same rules.
(applause)

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Mr. Stevens.

MR. STEVENS: I would like to thank Delegate Ostrow for
his very fine presentation of this matter. In substance, at
least, it agrees entirely with the idea our committee had in
mind in proposing this addition to this section.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Mr. Hutchinson.

MR. HUTCHINSON: Mr. Chairman, I do not desire to
speak to the Cudlip amendment which is on the floor and I
will yield until we get to the main question.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Mr. Pellow.

MR. PELLOW: Mr. Chairman and delegates, I concur
in the remarks of Delegate Ostrow and the only question in
my mind is whether or not this language is mandatory and
binding on the legislature. From reading the language that is
the way that I interpret it and that is the reason that I am
standing so that the record will show that this language is
mandatory on the legislature to act.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: The question is on the Cudlip
amendment,

Mr. King.

MR. KING: I will yield until we vote on the Cudlip amend-
ment. I want to speak on the general question.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Mr. Austin.

MR. AUSTIN: I would like to ask Mr. Cudlip, in propos-
ing the inclusion of the language “individuals, firms and corpo-
rations,” whether it is his intention to include only legally
constituted entities or other entities such ag civic organiza-
tions, clubs, political organizations, and then there are trusts
and estates that might be covered too.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Would you care to answer, Mr.
Cudlip?

MR. CUDLIP: Mr. Chairman and Member Austin, I was
using words that in legal phraseology are supposed to cover
the orbit which I described. But certainly, I have no objection
if you want to put in “voluntary associations, joint stock com-
panies, partnerships” and all the rest. I think myself that
these 3 words are generally regarded by lawyers and courts
as covering about all the entities you can think of. There are
voluntary associations which aren’t even profit or nonprofit
corporations, such as the chamber of commerce, as it was
pointed out. That’s all I can say to the matter. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: The question is on the Cudlip
amendment,
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Mr. Habermehl.

MR. HABERMEHL: Mr. Chairman, as Mr. Cudlip stated,
I don’t believe that he has any objection to the addition of
the words voluntary associations and I think it might well
take away any doubt about their right or their standing before
such an investigative body. I believe Mr. Austin’s point was
well taken. ‘“Voluntary associations” would cover fraternal
or civic groups, or anything that has not been incorporated as
a nonprofit corporation. I would move to amend the amend-
ment by adding the 2 words voluntary associations.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: The Chair would like to know
where you want to put them, Mr. Habermehl. (laughter)

MR. HABERMEHL: I don’t care.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Would you advise the Chair just
about where you want to place the words?

MR. HABERHEML: After the word “corporations”.

SECRETARY CHASE: Mr. Habermehl offers the follow-
ing amendment to the Cudlip amendment :

1. Amend the amendment after ‘“corporations” by insert-
ing “and voluntary associations”.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: The question now is on the
Habermehl amendment to the amendment.

Mr. Hutchinson.

MR. HUTCHINSON: Mr. Chairman, I'd like to speak to
that. It seems to me, ladies and gentlemen of the committee,
that one of the things we have to be careful about in writing
a constitutional provision is that we don’t try — by spelling
out a long list of things — to make it look and read just like
a statute.

I think we go a long way when we add firms and corpora-
tions but when you begin to talk about voluntary associations,
which are not legal entities in and of themselves, it seems to
me as though that, for all practical purposes, reverts back to
“persons.” All you are talking about here anyway is the right
of fair and just treatment. Really, neither a corporation nor a
firm or any other kind of a group can appear or act or any-
thing of the sort except through persons. Really, it’s the
rights of persons that we are concerned with here.

I wouldn’t want to raise objection to Mr. Cudlip’s original
amendment, although I disagreed with it, but I didn’t think
there was any point in splitting hairs. But when you add
voluntary associations, then somebody else will think up some
other kind of entity and after you get all through you’ll have
the thing reading just like a statute, and that is not good con-
stitutional practice, nor is there any need for it for the reason,
as I say, that basically this thing has to do with the right of
persons to fair and just treatment. And I say, any other kind
of entity can act only through persons.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Mr. Cudlip.

MR. CUDLIP: Mr. Chairman, I disagree with Member
Hutchinson. I don’t know whether he was in the hall when
I spoke. We are concerned here with the careful use of
language to avoid a lot of litigation and I repeat that in the
first unchanged sentence of this section, the word ‘persons”
is used and it has different meaning, depending upon the
application of the mixture of rights in that first sentence.
And if the committee wishes to adopt the proposed change, I
simply was pointing out that there was no use in the same
section in putting on our courts the problem of interpretation.
If we mean these things, let’s say them. Because if I were a
judge I'd be a bit confused if a body — a legislature or a con-
vention such as this—gave me in 50 words the use of the
word “persons” twice when they meant different things in the
use of the word “persons”.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Mr. Hutchinson.

MR. HUTCHINSON: Mr. Chairman, I'd like to point out
again that obviously the courts came to the right decision in
interpreting the old original language in referring to a person
as being an individual in the first right guaranteed the witness
against himself. And it came to the right conclusion with re-
gard to the second right, referring to life, liberty and property
without due process of law, because it is true that an entity
can hold property, but an entity doesn’t have life and I don’t
think it has liberty. It has property.

But now, then, we are talking about the treatment before
investigations, proceedings and hearings. And I say to you
again, a fair expectation is that in interpreting the words
“persons” there, the courts would revert to the concept of the
individual again because it is only the individual that this
sentence can actually apply to.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: The Chair recognizes Mr. Austin
on the Habermehl amendment to the Cudlip amendment.

MR. AUSTIN: I am inclined to agree with Delegate
Hutchinson and I am wondering if the language of the Cudlip
amendment is necessary inasmuch as these entities are rep-
resented by individuals or persons. So I am wondering if Mr.
Hutchinson would like to suggest along with me that perhaps
we ought to get along without this additional language.

MR. HUTCHINSON: Yes.

MR. AUSTIN: 1 would be inclined then to oppose the
Cudlip amendment.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: The question is on the Haber-
mehl amendment to the Cudlip amendment.

The Chair recognizes Mr. Ford.

MR. FORD: If it is in order, I want to support the Cudlip
amendment and disagree respectfully with Senator Hutchinson
on the question that he raises about a corporation or legal
entity not being subject to the same sort of abuses we are
talking about here.

I don’t want to appear to be pleading the case of corporations
but I can visualize situations —and I think this is one of the
things that came to light while we were talking about the word
“proceedings” — when, for example, a state agency is estab-
lishing rates for utilities and, although the individuals rep-
resenting the utility company appearing before the agency may
themselves be treated fairly, it’s entirely possible that the
proceedings might take a turn where the business reputation
of the corporation is affected in a way that cannot be success-
fully defended against.

And when you get to the unincorporated associations and
the others — I remember not so long ago in this state when
we were reading a lot of stories about our state university
that were disturbing to us and arose out of hearings that were
being held over here in the legislature. And I don’t know
what the rights of the university as an entity might be in that
case, but if there is a way that we can be sure that when the
reputation of something such as one of our universities or a
corporation, if you please, for private profit is impaired by the
nature of the proceedings and we can do something here to
prevent this as indicated by the Cudlip amendment, I think we
should support it.

OHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: The Chair recognizes Mr. Ostrow
for the purpose of discussing the Habermehl amendment to
the Cudlip amendment.

MR. OSTROW: 1 disagree with Mr. Hutchinson because a
corporation can be unjustly treated by any one of a dozen
different administrative departments in the matter of issuing
licenses or cancelling licenses or assessing penalties in this day
and age when ‘80 many small businesses are incorporated.
We’re not just talking about large corporations. We're talking
about the little ones too. They can be pushed around. It's just
as important that they receive fair and just treatment.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Mr. Habermehl.

MR. HABERMEHL: I just wanted to ask Delegate Hutch-
inson a question as to whether or not he didn’t believe that a
witness before such a body could be treated with the utmost
courtesy but be required to do an act that would be grossly
unfair to the organization that he represents.

MR. HUTCHINSON: Will you give me a hypothetical illus-
tration?

MR. HABERMEHL: I will. I can recall a certain organ-
ization that was asked to submit the entire list of its mem-
bership. Certainly, that could not have been —had it been
done politely — an unfair treatment of the individual that was
appearing. But I believe the courts held it was unfair to the
organization.

MR. HUTCHINSON: Mr. Chairman, I'd like to reply that
apparently that matter was something that was taken care of
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without this additional language in the constitution. The courts
found an unfairness, even though we didn’t spell it out in the
constitution. Then maybe it’s not necessary to spell it out in
the constitution.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Mr. Wanger.

MR. WANGER: Mr. Chairman and members of the com-
mittee, I wish to ask a question of Mr. Habermehl regarding
his amendment, and that is this: as I understand it, a voluntary
association is never a legal entity; it’s merely a descriptive
phrase used to define an association of individuals, and as
such, no voluntary association can sue or be sued except by
listing all of the names of the individuals. I raise that question
with the thought in mind that perhaps the word ‘“persons’” alone
is sufficient to cover voluntary associations.

MR. HABERMEHL: Technically, Mr. Wanger, a voluntary
association is a partnership. You are right in that it couldn’t
sue or be sued but I assume that it could be called before one
of these investigatory bodies and be asked questions concerning
the entire organization.

MR. WANGER: If they are a partnership, then would not
the word firm be sufficient to cover that?

MR. HABERMEHL: I don’t know the legal definition of
the word firm.

MR. WANGER: I remain at the microphone merely for
the purpose, Mr. Chairman, of raising a point of order should
any subsequent speaker fail to confine himself to the Haber-
mehl amendment before it is acted on.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: The Chair will try to accede to
that request.

Mr. Allen.

MR. ALLEN: Mr. Chairman, it seems to me what we are
bogged down here with is choosing the right words after we
have a pretty well understood idea of what the consensus of the
committee is, and I take it that the consensus of the committee
is that the protection afforded should go not only to individuals
but to all types of business entities. The only problem is we
don’t know how to describe them. Perhaps if we did try to
describe them, we start running into too many words and we
start reading like a statute rather than a constitution.

Now, I know when we try and work these things out imme-
diately on the floor — we had this problem before, last week,
when we tried to do this— we just don’t have enough time
or enough immediate knowledge. And I am wondering, as a
practical matter, when the style and drafting committee knows
what the intent of the group is—and it is only a case of
putting in the right words —if we can’t save a lot of time
in this kind of situation, both right here today and on ones
we will have in the future, if we could pass the proposal
and allow style and drafting, which has to come back to us,
to make the necessary corrections and rely upon the judgment
of style and drafting that if they feel that the words as passed
don’t represent the feeling of the committee, to call it to our
attention, because under the rules it may do so. Because I
fear that as this committee goes along, if we don’t do some-
thing like this, we are going to have many cases where we
know what we want but we don’t how to say it. And if we
try to work it out on the floor, we will be here for a long,
long time.

Now, I might also say that a similar problem came up on the
construction of the fourteenth amendment to the federal con-
stitution where the word “citizens” as referring to equal pro-
tection of the laws and the word ‘“persons” as referring to
due process were used. And I know that the courts have
construed a person as a corporation under the due process and
I am inclined to feel that Senator Hutchinson is right in this
case but since we don’t really know, I think we ought to refer
this matter to the style and drafting committee.

MR. WANGER: Point of order, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: What is your point?

MR. WANGER: I respectfully raise the point of order that
the delegate is not speaking now on the subject of the Haber-
mehl amendment but rather on the Cudlip amendment.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Have you any comment to make?

MR. ALLEN: I think it applies to both. In other words, I
think we are working out words here.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Continue, Mr. Allen.

MR. ALLEN: That was all I had anyway. (laughter)

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: The Chair will recognize Miss
Donnelly on the Habermehl amendment.

MISS DONNELLY: Well, I would like to first support the
Habermehl amendment but more substantially to support the
Cudlip amendment, and I must take exception with our good
senator because I do feel that corporations may be substan-
tially injured and that it is —

MR. WANGER: Point of order.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: What is your point?

MR. WANGER: The speaker is not confining herself to
the Habermehl amendment, which is the subject before the
committee.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: The point is well taken. The
question is on the Habermehl amendment. Miss Donnelly, do
you care to continue on the Habermehl amendment?

MISS DONNELLY: I yield to Mr. Cudlip.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Mr. Cudlip.

MR. CUDLIP: I wish to speak to the Habermehl amend-
ment because I think I know what I want to say in the amend-
ment. Mr. Habermehl wants to say something else and that’s
fine with me. But I do want to point out that these voluntary
associations which he refers to are common law associations;
they have no corporate status. Most of our trade associations

-are not incorporated; they are voluntary common law asso-

ciations. They can sue and be sued as such without listing
all the members. I just want to make that observation. It is
my opinion as a lawyer, pertinent to the point raised by Mr.
Habermehl.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI:
on the Habermehl amendment.

MR. TUBBS: Mr. Chairman, I want to speak to all amend-
ments. It seems to me that this is a pioneering piece of con-
stitutional literature. We are trying to throw a cloak around
the shoulders of witnesses. If we can’t throw a cloak, let’s at
least give them a fig leaf. After all, that’s the pioneering
piece of protective clothing, isn’t it? (laughter)

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: The Chair recognizes Mr. Ma-
hinske on the Habermehl amendment.

MR. MAHINSKE: As I understand the remarks just made
by Mr. Cudlip, he has no objection to the Habermehl amend-
ment and I have no objections to the Habermehl amendment. It
seems to me we are all talking about the same thing. I was
wondering if Mr. Habermehl would yield to a substitution of
his amendment and include the words after “person”, “natural
or otherwise,” which would be all inclusive, and go on from
this point.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI:
Habermehl?

MR. HABERMEHL: Mr. Mahinske, probably you can in-
form me on this. Would that cover anything but persons and
corporations who would be covered under your language?
Would it cover voluntary associations?

MR. MAHINSKE: I think it would because we had the
argument from Mr. Ostrow and Senator Hutchinson here where
we talk about the voluntary associations that have no legal
identity as such. We are still talking about persons, whether
they are called in as persons or as a natural person or other-
wise, and they are covered under any construction of what
their entity amounts to here.

MR. HABERMEHL: If that is so, I have no particular
pride of authorship in the words “voluntary associations”. I
would yield, however, to Mr. Cudlip. Of course, this would
affect his amendment too.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Mr. Cudlip.

MR. CUDLIP: I don’t believe you are talking about my
matter now. (laughter)

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: The question is on the Haber-
mehl amendment to the Cudlip amendment.

Mr. Austin.

MR. AUSTIN: Mr. Chairman, I am in favor of the Haber-
mehl amendment because the subject matter was something
that I raised. The only reason why I suggested that perhaps

The Chair recognizes Mr. Tubbs

Do you care to answer, Mr.
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we might avoid all of this language is that it does appear that
it is persons who do appear before these organizations, that is,
these governmental organizations representing other organ-
izations. But if we are going to have the Cudlip amendment,
I certainly feel that the Habermehl amendment is appropriate.

I would like also to address just a few remarks to the re-
marks made by Mr. Cudlip in regard to the right of unin-
corporated groups to sue and be sued and so on. We are not
talking about the courts now, as I understand it. We are talk-
ing about appearances before governmental agencies and it is
not just a matter of whether they can be sued or not be sued.
I believe that these voluntary organizations or associations do
need to be included. Just as an example, I would like to remind
you that there are such things as neighborhood clubs that may
want to appear before zoning boards and so on and they are
certainly entitled to proper consideration.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: The question is on the Haber-
mehl amendment to the Cudlip amendment.

As many as are in favor of the Habermehl amendment to the
Cudlip amendment will signify by saying aye. Opposed, no.

The amendment to the amendment is adopted.

The question now is on the Cudlip amendment as amended.
As many as are in favor of the Cudlip amendment will signify
by saying aye. Those opposed, no.

The amendment, as amended, is adopted.

SECRETARY CHASE: Mr. Lundgren offers the following
amendment to section 16:

1. Amend page 4, line 4, after “law.”, by striking out the
balance of the section.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI:
amendment.

Mr. Lundgren.

MR. LUNDGREN: Mr. Chairman, I offer that as a
substitute for the following purpose; with all the discussion
we’ve had here this afternoon, I feel that the language of the
original section should be carried forward and the new lan-
guage deleted that the committee has brought forth. So far this
afternoon, I've heard no substantial argument that changes my
opinion that the old section was proper. The courts have in-
terpreted it many times, they have found favor with it. There-
fore, I just ask that we delete the new language and revert
back to the old section. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: The question is on the Lundgren
amendment.

As many as are in favor of the amendment will signify by
saying aye. Opposed, no.

The amendment is not adopted.

Are there any further amendments?

SECRETARY CHASE: That is all of the amendments on
file to section 16, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: If not, section 16 will be passed.

Section 16, as amended, is passed.

MR. HUTCHINSON: Mr. Chairman, I do not wish to
interpose any will of mine here but it is obvious that we are
not going to be able to complete all of the consideration of the
bill of rights at this sitting. I was wondering if, in view of the
hour, the chairman of the committee might not think that it
was time that the committee did rise. (laughter)

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Dr. Pollock.

MR. POLLOCK: Mr. Chairman, I was hoping that we
could finish 2 more sections before we adjourned. I see no
reason to be in any hurry. (laughter and applause)

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: The secretary will read section 17.

SECRETARY CHASE: Section 17.

The question is on the Lundgren

[Sec. 17 was read by the secretary. For text, see above, page
465.]

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Mr. Stevens.

MR. STEVENS: Mr. Chairman and fellow delegates, here
is one in which we do not anticipate any amount of argument.
(laughter) We feel that it is purely noncontroversial. The
purpose of this provision is merely to provide that no person
shall be disqualified to testify in court because of any religious

belief or lack of belief. A person who cannot take an oath be-
cause of his religion or lack of religion is of course permitted
to testify after an affirmation. This has been in a long time.
We think it is sufficient. It has nothing to do with religious
liberty and so forth. That is why we did not see fit to attach
it to section 8. This has to do with witnesses in court, their
qualifications, nothing else. With those few remarks, I think
the matter should be settled.
CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI:
Section 17?
SECRETARY CHASE: None on file, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: If not, it will be passed.
Section 17 is passed.
SECRETARY CHASE:

Are there any amendments to

Section 18.

[Sec. 18 was read by the secretary. For text, see above, page
465.1

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Mr. Stevens.

MR. STEVENS: Mr. Chairman and fellow delegates, in this
case we did have suggestions of amendments. If you will read
your comment there:

[The comment to Sec. 18 was read by Mr. Stevens. For text
see above, page 465.]

In other words, we recommend the retention of the present
provision of the 1908 Constitution.

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Are there any amendments to
section 187

SECRETARY CHASE: Mr. Nord has the following amend-
ment:

1. Amend page 4, line 14, after “true” by striking out “and”
and inserting “or” ; so the language will then read, “. . . and, if
it shall appear to the jury that the matter charged as libelous
is true or was published with good motives. . . .”

CHAIRMAN BAGINSKI: Dr. Nord.

MR. NORD: Mr. Chairman, the suggestion I have to make
here is not a change in language, really, even though it has
been performed in one word. It is a substantive matter and I
might say that it has been called to the attention of all the
delegates by virtue of the Comparative Analysis of the Mich-
igan Constitution put out by the citizens research council,
which in volume 1, part 2, on page 4, makes this comment:

Probably no change is necessary although there are good
reasons for eliminating the requirement that the jury
must find in truth that it was published with good motives
and justifiable ends before acquitting the accused.

The question is, why require more burdensome defense in
a criminal libel case than in a civil libel case? That is the
exact question I would like to address myself to. )

First of all, I would like to point out that in the committee
report there seems to be an unquestioning assumption which
on the other hand is unquestionably not so. It is made twice
and is incorrect. The 2 points in the comment — first of all
it is stated that the committee carefully considered removing
the entire subject of criminal libel. Now, I did not make that
motion. I don’t know who did. But I notice right after that
it says this, “But it believes that the defenses of truth, good
motives and justifiable ends constitute an adequate protec-
tion . . .” and it goes on. The point is that it says “the de-
fenses”, in the plural. It lists 3 defenses: truth is a defense,
good motives is a defense, and justifiable ends is a defense.
And it is made perfectly clear that they mean them, they
assume them to be 8 separate defenses because not only is
the word defenses used, which is the plural, bu